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Introduction

“The Opera ghast!™ fammes soreamed in tervor; and her finger poinied,
adrrony the e, fo o faee 5o ugly, so pale, with o degp black holes for
epes.
“The Crpera ghost! The Croera ghost!”

The managers of the Paris Opera, Monsicur Polymy and
Mensieur Drebienne, have had enough of this ghost, so they are
retiritig, The new munayeers, Monsicor 1ichard and Monsigur
Moncharmin, have a cholce: du what the ghost wants or suffer
his revenge. And this is a revengeful ghost.

But is there reully a phantom in the apera house? Madame
(iiry, the box-keepert, is sure there &. She has never seen him, but
she hears him. And the managers receive letlers ot .G, wha
theeatens them if they de nat keep Box Five for his nse only, The
new matagers think it s all a joke until they can find no other
explanation for same mysterious events.

A mumber of vears after these event, which excited the Paris
upper classes at the ome, the hisvorian telling this stocy wene to
the Madonal School of Music, He spent hours reading lemers,
papers, and Monsiear Moncharmin’s Memorice of & Manager, Ie
spoke to many people, incuding the deteetive an the case and
the Persiast, who kntew more than anybody, And here we learn
what he discovered,

Gasan Lerous, the aullror of The Phantorm of the Opera, was very
intercsted in the Paris Opeara, which was designed and built by
Charles Garnier in 1860. Lhe ground was very wer, and large
amants of waler bad to be pumnped out to dig the deep cellars
over which the Opera was built. Te is said chae there s still an
underground lake there. [n these cellars and on this underground

lake, we discover tnuch more about Leroux s ghost.
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While ne wrare for newspapers about perfarmances ac che
Oypera, Lercioe was able to explore pares of che building that che
public never see. Ile describes for us in grear detail the hondreds
of rooams and meiles of passages; they are on seventeen foors, five
af which are underground. The 2,300 doors and many trap doors
cxcited his Umagination. There could e ne better scene for che
stores of mystery and horror that he wrote, and  thar have
retined poprular with readers ever since.

The Phantom f the Opery first appeared in print in Paris in
1914, and was immediatcly popalac It was ranslated 1ot English
the followiig vear, and came out in England and the Undted
States. By 19253 the silent mwvite starring Lon Chaney was
frightening andiences around the world, and oven voday 1t is
available on video cassette. Lhere have been elghteen movies
based on The Phantom of the Opere, and nine theatrical
productions including the popular mwsical by Andrew Lloyd
Webber. And, of course, you can find moere information and
discussion groups on the ineernct.

Craston Leroax {THGH—TY27) was boaen in aris. As 2 young man
he wanted to become a writer, but he smadicd law to please his
father, and in 1889 he received his law degree. In the same vear
his father died, leaving lis so 3 brge amount of maney, bt
fzaston spent it all within a year. 8o he began wnhng stories and
pocms for the newspapers to make some money, Later, he wrore
abour theatrical petformances for L'Celte de Paris, Making vse of
his legal traiming, he hecame 1 courtronom reporeer, and then
reported from foreign countrics.

He traveled v many countries around the world and had many
adventures, In Moroces, in 1905, he dresed in Arab chothes ta
learn and write aboue importane events ar g tume when Prance
and Cermuany were strugpling for power In that country, Leroux
alsar eraveled o Russia, where he wrote about the grear politica

¥i

and social changes, During those years of travcling, he also wrore
four novels. Then, in 1907, he wrote his firse big success: the
Mustery of the Yelfme Hoem. In this novel he inteodeced his
desective, Joseph Rooulelaballe, whe appears in other banks by
Leroux. Besides the detective stories, Leroux wrote several more
horwor swories, ncluding fa Doshle e de Theapheasies Longeer ( The
LDyoushle Life of Theaphraites Lowgned) and La Beine dn Sebbat (Lhe
Chgeon of Sabbar). Lerouw also wrote stage plavs, mostly based on
his own books, Ne wrote sereenplays, and in 1919 he formed his
own productien campaty. From 1909 Leroux swrote a book 2
vear until his deach in 1927 o che age of 59
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Chapter 1 Is It the Ghost?

1t weas ihe evening on which Muonsieur™ Delicune and Mansieur
Poligny, the managers of the Opera, were giving a last
performance to mark their retirement. Soddenly, a half dozen
young ladies of the ballet were in che dressing room of La Sorelli,
one of the main dancers. Some were langhing unnaturally and
some were saeaming i terror. Sorelli, who wished to be alone
for a mmmeant to practics ler ‘il‘.rEfH’.h to the departing managers,
lanked around angrily ar the noisy crowd. It was Jammes who
eave the explatation in a shaky woice: “Ie’s the ghost!” And she
locked the door. -

Sorel was supersdtous. Wlien she heard dhis, she called the
Efteen-year-old Jartimes 2 “silly Little fool” but then asked for
details. Have vou seen him?”

“As clearky as I sce you now!™ said Jammes.

Then hele Gy added, “Hes very ugly!™

“Oh, yes!” eried the other gitrls,

They all hegan to talk wogether, The ghose had appeared to
ihem in the shape of 2 gendeman in fine clothes. He suddenly
stood in font of them in the passage and seemed ro have come
straight ehrough dhe wall.

“(h, vou see the ghost everywhere!™ said ome of thetn, whao
had remained more senable.

And it was rrue, For several manths, all the discussion at the
Opera had been of chis ghost in fine cothes who walked guietly
and showly around the building, He spoke to nobody and nobody
dared speak to lim. [Te disappeared as soon as he was scen. At
first, everyhody langhed ahout him, but the story ot the ghost

* hondeur: the French word boc e,



soon swelled enarmously among the ams de balfer.® Al che girls
pretended char they met this phaneom often. And those who
langhed the londest were the teast comnfortable,

And who bad seen him? You meet so many men in fine
clothes it the Opor who arc not ghoss. Bot his suit covered a
sheleron, Ar least, the ballet girls said so. And, 1t had the face of
Dzath,

"1y all ehis serious? In fact, chic idea of the skeleton came foom
ihe descriprion of the ghost given by Joseph Buguet, who was in
charge of moving scenery. He had really seen the ghost—on the
stairs that led to the cellavs—for o second before Uie ghost ran
vy

Buguet tald his Msteners, “He 1z extraordinarily thin and his
coat hangs on his skeleton, 13is eyes ure very deepe~—ust two big,
black holes. His nasty yellowr skin is dghely stretched across his
bones, and he has no nosc, which is a koreible ching o look a0

Joseph Buguet wag o serious man, pet one whe imagines
things. His words were teceived with interest and amurement;
and saon ather people clainied o have seen the ghost. And then,
a series of curlous events that nobody could explain nude
avervbody feel uncotufortable.,

But we s reryro mothe evening when e cried, 1S
ghost!™ After the fiese excitement, everything was quist in the
dressing coom, Then, with real terror on her face, Jammes criad,
*Timen! ™

They conld hear somebody outside the Jdoor, Sorelll wenr up
ter it and in a shaky voice asked, "Wha's there?” Bor nobaody
ziswered, Feeling all eyes on her, she asked loudly, “Is anyone
behind the door?™

“Oh, yes. £f course ehere s cried litle Meg Giry, She held
Sorelli back by her skirt. “ Whatever vou do, dan't open the dawr!”

* cagpg e balles: the darkeers ina Tallet conopany,

But Sorelli turned the key and opened the door She braely
looked into the passage. It was empry. The dancer closed the door
dpaiTl,

“No,” she said, “there is no one there, Now, girls, stop all this.
Mo one has ever seen the ghaost,”

*Yes, ves, we saw him—uore saw hime just now!” cried the girls
“He had his face of Death and his fine clothes, just as when he
appeared to Joseph Buguet!™

“And Gabriel, the singing master, saw lam tow!” said Jamees,
“Gabriel was in the stage managers office and the Persian came
in. Cabriel saw the ghost behind the Persian! He saw the ghost
with the face of Death, just like Joseph Buguet’s descraprion!™

Tautle Giry said,”Joseph Buquet should keep quiet”

"Wy e sonwebuody asked.

“That’s mothers opinion.” rephed Meg. She lowered her voice
ared looked arpund. -

"And why is it vour mothers opinion?” asked another gizl.

*haother says the ghost doesn't like being talked about.”

“And why does your mother say so?”

All the girls came closer “Because | (- becanse ... [ swore not
tor telll”

They promised to keep her sccrot and Mey was desparate to
tell all she ktews With her eves on the door, shie hegan,“Well, i's
Lecause of the private box.”

“Whar private bex?”

“The vhost’s o™

“Droes the ghost hase a box in the Opeta?™

“Not so loud!™ said Meg, “Its Box Five”

“(Oh, nuneense!”

"T ey ir is. Mother's in charge of it. No ope has had it for
over a month, except the ghost, and orders have been given ot the
bow othee that it trust never be sold.”

“And dogs the ghost really come there?™
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“¥es, The ghost comes, but nobody can see him,”

“Somebody must see him!”

“Al that talk abouwt his fine clothes and his face 15 nonsense.
Mother has pever scen hin, bur she s heard him."”

Sotelli grew ipalient and bittle Giry began to crv.

“Tf mather learns that I have twld you ... Bur 1 was righ—
Joscpn Buquet was wrong 1o tatk about things that don't concern
hime. It will bring bad Juck—morher was saving that Tast
nighe . "

There was a sound of harried footsteps in the pasage and
breathless volce cricd, “fammes! Jammes! Are you theze?™

“It's mothers voice,” said Jonuaes. “What’ the mateer?”

She opened rhe door, A respectable lady, large and strong,
burst into the dressing room and dropped into an empty chair.

“Whac is ir?" the gitls eried.

“Joseph Buquet is dead!™

Lverybody held dhcir beeath, thew their shouts and questions
flled the air,

“"He was found hanging in the third cellac”

“It’s the ghost!” cried litle Giry, but at once she corrected
herself and her bitthe hands covered her mouch, “Ne, no! T dide’e
say i

Her friends all said quietly, “Ves, it tnust be the ghost!™

Sorelli was very pale. “l will never be able to mve iy speech,”
she said.

In fact, no one ever koew how Joseph Buguet met his death.
In hiz bouk, A Managers Memorice, Monsieur Monchannin, one
of the two matagers who ran the Opera after Monsieur
IZebienne and Monsieur Peligny left, described what happened
ay foltows:

A serious sccident spoiled the litde pacy wlkich Moosieor
| ¥ehienne arnd Monsieur Poligny gave 1o celebuale Uieic ielieement.
I was in the managers office when Mergier, the scenety manager,

4

widdenly came in. He scorned half mad and told e dhat ihe body
of 2 nem had heen found langimg onder the stage. By the mme
I rushed dowa the staim, the mman was oo longer banging fom
115 Fope!

Sa, a mim Ianes at the end of 4 rope; they go o cut him
down; the rope has disappeared. Mansieur Moncharmin found a
sunple explanagon:

It weas just afrer the hallet and che dancing girls kuew they had to
haery anel destrov the tope if they wanted to avedd any bad luck
hecavse thoy were very superstitions,

Imagine the corps de ballr hurrying down dhe stairs and
dividing the rope amuong thermselves! I think that somebody
wanted that rope to disappear as sootl 25 it had done its work,

Sorelli was oo ber way w give her speech, with all the gire
frllerwving clasely behind, when she ran into Count Chagny, whe
wWias CONLING Upstairs.

“1 was just going to vou," he said, rking off his hac. “Sorelli,
wlhat an evening! And Christine Draaé: What a triumph!”

“Six months ago, she used to sigr Lke a chicken” sald Meg
Giry, “But let ws pass, my dear count, We are going (o inguire
about 4 poor man who was found hanging by the neck™

Just then Mercier came hunying past and stopped when he
beard this remark. “What?” he atked. “Have you gitls heard
already? Please, dont let Monsieur Debicnne and Monsizur
Poligny hear about ic 1t would upset them o muoch oo therr Last
day,”

Crount Chagny was cight; no perfarmance had ever equaled
this one. Christine Daaé had shewm her truce talent for the fist
tme to the surprised and enchtsiastic audience. There were
many famows pieces beauntifully sung by the famous singers of
the duy, bul Clristine Daaé had been, without exaggeration, the
Lest. Her voice produced divine sounds in the prison scene of



Faurst ™ wheti she sate in place of La Carlotta, who was sick. No
* one had ever heard or seen anydhng Like it

LPeople wunted to know why 12aaé, a real jewel, had been kepe
from them. Why wias Daaé only alowed to perform chis picee
when La Carortz was sick? Were Debienne and Poligny frying to
keep this preat ralent hidden? Why? And why had she kept i
Ridden® The whole thing wuas a mystery.

Phibppe Teonges Marie, Count of Chagny, was forty—one,
vood-looking, and wealthy. Standing up in his box, he had listened
to the entliusiastic andicnee and joined in by clapping lowdly Newc
to him was his brother, Racul, whoe was twenty yeans vounger
Their paresits had died when Raoul was very young, so Philippe
Eronghe up the vonmg visconnt, who later joined the mavy. Ragul
kad just come back from a trip around the world and was now
hone for six mwonchs before his next journey to the North Pole.

Philippe wanted Paoul w see Paris, so he took him
evcrvwhere and introdoced him o the Opera. On that evening,
Philippe was clapping londly when he looked ar his brother, who
seerned guite pale, Christine Daaé had just been carned off after
fainting at the end of her pertformance,

“¥ou are oot going ta faint too, are yon®” Philippe asked.

But Raoul recovered and stood up, “Let’s go and sec her” he
said, “She never sang like thar bafore.”

Kaoul led the way, feeling that lvis heart neo longer helonged o
by, his face 1 picnue of burning desire. Coue Plolippe follovwed
him through the crowd of gentlemen, scene movers, aud ballet
gitls. When they arrived at Chrisdne Daaé’s drescing room, the
doctor was there with her——and with a great admiring crowd.

“Dhon't wou think, Doctor, that those gendemen had better
clear the room? asked Baoul coollv “She can't breathe here”

“You're quite tight,” said the doctor.

¥ Fupsdi an vpens by Gouned,

And, thinking chat the voung man had o right o stay, he sent
CTEROLLe AWAY, EXCopt Roaoul aod a servant—worman. She did oot
ke Bocmal—in fact, she had never seen him before—bue she
dlid rot dare to question him,

Christine 12aaé torned, looked ot dthe docror, and soiled.
Then, she saw Baoul and asked, “Monsicur, who ane vou?™

“Mademoizelle” ™ replied the young man, koeeling on ot
knee and pressings a kiss on her hand, "1 am the litde boy whe
wenr into the ses to ewewe your scarf”

Christine again looked ar die doctor and e servant—woni,
and all three lregan to langh.

Raoul turned very ved and stood vp " Mademoselle” he snd,
“sitice vou choose not to recopnize e, [ would like o say
smething to you in private, something very important”

“When I am better, do you mund

“Yes, you tnust 2o, said the doctot. with his pleasant simile.
“Let me rake care of mademniseile™

Suddenly, Christne stood up with sttange and anexpected
energy and asked all the men o leave. Outside her daor, the
docter said o Bacal, “She is nor herself conight. She is wsually so
wentle™

Ravul stood alone after the doctor Teft, This part of rthe
theater was mow empry, He felt a terrible pain in his hearr, and
this was what be wanted oo spoak to her about. The servan-
wornun cane out and Raoul asked abour Chiristine, The woman
sald rlal she was quite weell, but that e must noe bather her
becanse she wished to be left 2lonc. Only ene idea filled Raouls
burning brain: of course, she wanted to be left alone for him! Ie
liad told her that he wanited to spedk ro her privately.

He went to her door and prepared te knock. But his hand

dropped. He heard a4 smwan’s voice n the dressing room, Sivitg,

* Mademoiselle; the Frencly word for hfisa



“Christite, vou most love me!” And Christne’s sad voice
replving, "How van you talk ke that? Hhen I sing ondy jor you!™

Roaoul’s heart beat so toudly that he was sure they would hear
it ingide, They woutd open the daar and he would be sent awayl
What a position for a Chagny! To be canght listening behind a
door! He put his hands on his heart to make ir stop.

The man’s voice spoke again. " Are you very tired?”

“Tonight I gave you my soul, and T am dead!™ Christine
replied.

“NYour sonl is a heautifisl thing, child,” replied the man, “and 1
thank vou. No king ever received such a wonderful gift. The

angeli in Heaven cricd ronight.”

Raoul heard nothing after that, but he did not po away. He
decided to wat until the man lett, To his preat surprise, the door
opened and Christitie [Daal appeared, alone,. She clased the door
Rehind her, but she did not leck . Raoul did ot even watch her
go. His eyes were on the door, but 1t did not opent agan,

Foaoul let himself in and closed the door. The dressing room
was dark. “There is someone herel™ said Raoal. “What are yon
hiding for? You will nor leave this oom el 1 let you! If you
dom’t answer, you are 4 cowand, And T will tell evervonea!”

Raoul it a match, and the flame lit up the room, There was no
omel “Am T going mad™ he asked, aloud.

He went out, ot koowing what be was domng or where he
was goimyg. He found himsedf at the boteom of some staies and
some wotkmen were comting down behind him. carrving a long
bievard, covered with a white sheet.

*Which is the way owt? he asked one of the men,

“Straght in front of you, But let us pass.”

Pointing to the wite sheet, he asked,“What's thatt™

A worloman answered, “ That i Joceph Buguet, who was found
i the durd cellur, lnnging”™

Raoul took off his hat and let the workmen pass.

Chapter 2 Box Five

Iuring this dme, the retirement ceremaony was taking place. The
most importatt people in the social and ardstic world of Paris
had nzer in che entrance hall of the Opera after the performance,
Sorelll waitcd for the arrival of the retieing wanagers with 2
prapared speech ar ¢he ap of her rongue. Behind her, the
mmembers of the carps do ballet, voung and old, discussed the events
of the day i whispers,

Ewrybody remarked thar the retiring managers  looked
cheerful. They were smiling broadly s Sorcli spoke—until
everyonc heard a sudden shouot fram that litde devil, Janirmes,

“The Cpera ghost!”™ James sereamed in terrar; and her finger
pointed, among the crowd, to 2 face so ugly, so pale, with two
deep black holes for aves.

“Tue Opers ghost! The Opera gliost!”

Everybody laughed snd pushed and wanted o offer the {pera
ghost a drink. bur he was gone. [e shpped through the crowd.
satme lowked for kim withonr suecess, while e ald gentlemen
tried o calm little Jwnmes, and litele CGiry stoad sereaming
wrcontrnlably

Sorelli was very angry that she had nat been able to findsh her
speccli The managers kissed her, thanked her, and ran zway as
tasl as rhe ghost himsel No one was surprised becanse thers
were twa more floors above with crowds waiting to say zoodbye
ty them. (In the top floor there were persanal friends and a
wenderful supper.

Here they found the new muanagers, Monsicur Armand
Mocharmin and Monsieur Firmin Richard. The retiring
managers had already handed ewer the two tiny keys which
apened 31l the donrs—thousands of dovm—eof the opera house,
Sume of the puests noticed, at the end of the table, that strange
face with the hallow eyes.



Thete the ghost sat as naturally as any man, Bue he neither ate
not drank. Mo one smiled, or joked, or shouted, "The Clpeea
gheost!™ Those wheo had seen him first and smited were now
rarning their heads away,

He did not speak, and the people next to him could not say at
whial exact moment he had sat down beeween themr The friends
of the new managers thought that this guest was a friend of the
old managers. And the frends of the old managers thouglh that
he was a [iend of the new managess, So, diers was no requast fot
am explamicion,

A few of thoze present who knew the story of the ghost and
the descriptivn of him by Juseph Buquet thoughl thal the man at
the end of the table might be him, But, according o the story,
the ghost had no nose and this person had. But Monsieur
Moncharnun says in bis Memories that you could see through the
guest’s nose. | will add thae dhis mught very well be true of & false
nose, made for people who have lost their noses naturally or as a
result of an operation.

Ehd the ghost teally take a seat ar che managers’ supper rable
v night, vnipwceds And can we he sure thar the figure there
wai the Oper ghost? | mention 1t because it seetns so steange.
And, it is imnpaossible, isn't it2

Monchartnin, in chapter eleven of his Memaories, says;

When [ think of this firse c".'t:':r:.ing. [ cammot separate the scere
tioled 10 us by Monsienr Debdenne and Monsieur Polipny in their
office from the presence of thar ghostly person who none of s
kniew,

This is what happened: Monsicar Debienme and Monsieur
Poligmy hiad niot seen the man with the face of Treath, Suddenty,
the man began to speak.“The ballet gitls are right.”” be said. “The
death of that poor Bugquet is maybe not as namral as people

think "

10

“1s Thuguet dead?” they cried.

“¥es,” replied the man, or the shadow of 2 man, quietly, “He
way tound this evening, hanging in the third cellar®

‘Vhe two retiting mamsrers rose and stared strangely at the
speaker. They were very excited and bath men turned white.
Monsiesr Debicone ntxde 4 siem to Monsicur Richard and
Monsieur Moncharming Mansieur Poligny exoused himself and
the other three mwen. They went inta the managers” office,

I shall leave Monsieur Moncharmin ta complete the stery. In
his Mewsarees, he says:

Monmeur [debienne and bMonsieue Poligrny seemed oo g more
and rnore cxecited, and they appearsd to have something veuy
ditfizull w1l wy, First, choy asked if we kew the man, stting ac
the end of the table, who had twhd them of the demth of Joseph
Ruepiet. When we answered in the negative, they looked even
more anxions, Théy took the keys Bom our hands, sbared at them
ior a moment, and advised e to have oew locks made, They said
this in such a funny way that we began o auph and to ask if
there were thieves at the Owpern, They replied that rtherw was
snething worse—a ghast, We began to lwigh again, feeling sure
that this was a joke intended for our everangs entertunment.

Uhen, ae their requese, we became “seriows” deciding o lee
them play their licde game. They said Gu the ghose had given
therm orders. He wanted us o be pleisant to bt and to honor
any regquest he mighe make. Then they told os that the deadh of
Josepl Buguet was a tertible reminder ehat, whenever they
ymored the ghou's tequests, disaster strock,

I looked at Rachard. He was a apan who loved a joke. He
nondiled hiv head sadly whale che others spoke, and e looked ke
a man who repretted taking this job of manager. We both burst
cut highung. Monseur Debaerne sl Monsiene Polipgey looked
at us with expressions of amazement,

The joke ecarne a linde barg, and Pichard asked half sericusty
and half-jokingly, “bBur what does this ghost of yours wane?”

[



Monsicur Poligimye went o hiz desk and reearoed with a copy
of ihe memotandien book, which containg the managees’ rules
for the Paris Crperas It louked exucth like the one we had except
that ar the cpd chere was a passage 1o red ink and in 2 stranpe
handwriong. This passage was as follows: “An allowatice of
20,000 franes per moneh & to be made vo che Cperg ghost”

“Is that allr DroesnT be want anything clie®™ asked Monsicur
Richard with greac coulness,

“es, he does” replied Poligy “Beer Five will be for the use of
the Opera ghose for avery perdformanoe.”

We rose om our chairs, shook their hands, and chanked them
for the charming joke.

Fonsicur Poligny asked, " Have you considered wliat the Jass of
Box Five meant to us® We dad not sell it once. We really can't
work o keep ghosts' e preder 1o leaye!™

Monsieur Richard said, It seems to me that you were much
oo kind to the ghast, If T had such o touble-making ghost, |
wohd oo Tiesalule 0o hasee bi put i prison!”

“But how? they cried moeether " We lave never seen huny!”

“Buk when he coimes to his bos?™

“We have never seen bimn 1o his box ™

“Then scll it”

“Rell the Opera ghosls box! Well, pendetnen, eewv ic”

Then, we all four left the office, Fichunl and 1 had vever
Langhed 5o moch it our lives.

*

Firnun Rachard was a very fameons and much respecred writer
af rste who had & number of successful pieces i print. He had
a strong persanality, bot unfortunacely, he also had a very nasty
ECTIpheL.

In eeir [rst few days al (e Opera, the new parmers cojoved
the: excitement of finding rthemsalves ar the head of such an
admirable company. They had forgotren all abour the crazy story
of the ghost wlhen sormething happened that proved to them that
the: joke—iF it was a joke—was not over,

When Mopsienr Richard enteved his office, his secreciry,
Monsieur Rémy, showed him a letter which was marked
“private” Te weas addressed 1 red ink, in handwriting he had seen
before. He remembered the memarandum book and opened the
letter:

Dear bir Manager:

[ arm sorry to bother you when vou nmst be very busy, T koo
wiat vou lave done for Carlota, Sorclli, and Jaromnes, and {or o
[ew anthiers whose ulrimable qu;llitir:.-c, ot talent or FETLIWE, YU
have sspected.

When | use these words, Lam oot eeferrinp to La L arlowe, wha
sinyes blee o child; mor o Sorelli, nor to liede Jammes, who danges
like a poat in a field. And [ am not speaking of Christine Thaaé
either. Althougl ber genios s cerwing, your jealuusy prevents her
feewn pedorming any hmportant pact. I o not happy that vou
have forbidden her to play the part of Margart since her
trivengh the weher evening, bat [ wouald like to hear her o the
suppOortng role tonght,

Armand Monchartnin write so much and so often in his Memories
that it i hard to believe he ever had time to do his job. He did not
know 2 note of music, but he koew the rght people. He was a2
journahst for a short time and cnjoved a latge private income. He
was o charming man and did not lack intelligence. As snon as he
made up his mind to be a parmer in the Opera, he chose the best
possible manager and went stoaght to Firmin Richaed.
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I wall ask wou not to sell iy box waday nor on the followarg
das, as I cannot ennd ehis Jetter without telling vou how surprised
[ weas to hear that mw box had been solé on your orders. I did not
procest, first, beciwse 1 dishke unplessant behavior, el sewonsl,
becanse [ thoughe thae Maonsicur Debicnne aud  Moosicur
Poligny had forgonen oo well vou about ime. But, I wrote to dicin

annd ey replied that yom krewe all adsoal my tneinomandoen ook
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and that you arc meating e with complete discespect. 5 you
wish to live in peace, you trust not take ey my private box.
Your Most Crhedicnt Servant,
Crpera Crhost.

Moosieur Richard had just Lorislied reading the lecter when
Metsiewr Moncharmin cotered, carrying ane exactly the same.
They loaked at each other and burst out laughing,

"They like this joke,” said Monsieur Richard, “but [ dan't call
ie funmy”

Whae does 1t all mean™ asked Monsicur Moncharmin, “The
they imagine thar becavse they have been munagers of the (pera,
we are going to lot them have 3 box for an indefinite peniod:™

“[ am not in the meod 1o let nyself be Jaughed at for long,”
sasd Monsieur Pichard.

“Its harmless enough” olserved Monsicur Moncharmon.
“W hat is ir they really wane? & box for onigh?™

Monsienr Richard cold his secretary 1o scnd tickers for BBox
Five to Monsieur Debienne and Monsicur Poligny, if 1t was nat
sald. It was not, and the tickets were sent off to them. The new
managers regretted  that twn men of that age could amuse
themselves with such childish tricks.

+

The next morning, the managers reccived a card of thanks from
the phost:

Blear Mre Manager:
Thanks. Charming evening, Inaé woenderful. Carlotta 25 usual
Will write vou socn for 1oy allowance of 20,000 francs.
Eand wishes,
O

O e onlier huped, there was a lecter from Monsicur Debienne
and Monsieur Poligny:
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(qentlemet

e are vesy grarclid for your kind tleoughes, bot you will easily
prderszanh thae we Tovee i vight to sc in Beox Bive, which is the
properey ot the Opera ghost,

“Oh, thise two are begioning to annov me!” shouted
mlonsienr Richard,

And that evening Bone Five was sold.

The next morning, Monsicur Richard and Monsieur
Moncharmin found an inspectot’s repott in their office. The
repore said that something had happened the night betore, in Box
Five. There were people making a ke of noise aml annoying
others. When the inspector went b the box, they did not scem
to he in their right mind and they made stupid remarks. He
wyrned them, but a5 soon as he Ieft, they began bughing again,
The other pecple in the opera house protested, so he called for a
guard to thtow them oot

“Send for the inspector” said Monsweur Richard o his
secrctary, Rényy And when the sectetaty teturned with the
inspector, el us what happenad,” he demanded.

“As soon as those penple entered che box, they came our again
and called the hox-keeper. They said, ‘Lock in the box: theres no
one there, 15 there? ‘Mo, said the wontan. “Well,' they saad, "when
v weil in, we heard a voice saying that the box was reserved”™

*However," shoated Monsienr Bachand, “there was no onc m
the b, was there?”

"MNo one, sit! Ne one at all, sir, T swear!”

“And what did the hox-keeper say?™

", she just said it was the Opera ghostt™

"Send for the box-keeper]” shouted Mongicur Riachard ta
R.émy His anger was boiling np inside hnn, “Whe is this Opera
ghost?™ he demanded o know

The mspector was desperate. He could not speak. He backed
Ay,
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“Hawve you ever seen . -, the Opera whost?”

The inspeclor shook his head,

"I am gaing to fird out what ehis is all aboue”

The scenery managet cure in to discuss varions matters of
busingss with Momsicar Richard, The inspector thoughe he
could ge. sa slowly and quictly he was moving toward the door,
when Monsieur Richard pailed him to the flaot with a
thunderimg, “Stay where you are!™

Eémy tearmed with the box-keeper,

"W hat's your nomet” asked Monsienr Richard,

“Madame* Giry. You keow me well cnough, sir; iz the
mother of little Giry, little Meg!™

Richard looked at Madame Giry, in hee ald coar, her worn
shoes, and her old dress and dirty hat, He either did not know or
could not remember meeting Madame Ciry, nor lictle Giry, But
Madame Giry's pride was so great that she Imapined cverybody
knew her.

“Mever heard of her!” the manager said “Tell e, what
happencd last night?”

"I wanred to see vou, sit, 1nd talk to yoo abaut it so that yoo
wouldnt have the same unpleasaptness as Momsieur Debicnne
and Moensieur Boligy.”

“What happened Last might#”

"Il tell you what happened. The ghost was annoyed again!™

Meonsienr Rirhard was gefing very alyry, so Momsicur
Moncharmin continued the questioning, Madame Giry was not
at ail surprised that 2 voice had said thac the box was being used
althcugh there was nobody in the box. Nubody could see the
glrost, but everybody could hear hitn, she explained.

Meonsieur Monchartoin interrupted her, “Have you spoken to
the ghast, my pood {ady?™

* iladame. the French word for hrs.
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v As T am speaking to you now, siel” she replied.

“And when the ghost speaks to you. what does he say?”

“yiell, he tells me to bring him a foocrest!”

T'his time, Richard burst oot laughing,

“lstead of laughing, vou'd be wise to do as Monsicur Poligiy
Jid. He found out fior himself?” she said.

“Found oot about what? asked Moncharmin, whe had never
been so amused inall his Life.

“Ahour the ghost, of course! They were plaving: La fule® and
Mansieur Poligny thought he would waech the performance
fram the ghosts box ... Well, when Leopold ories, "Let s fly”,
Maonseur Poligny got up and walked out gquite stiffly .7

“That doesil tell us how the Opera ghost asked vou far a
foroerest,” sald Mancharmin,

“SFll, from that evening, no onc tried o ke the ghosts
private box from him. The ounager gave orders that he must
v it ar each performance. And, whenever he camne, he asked
mie for g feotrest”

"oy sy, ‘he’t”

“Yeo he has a mans voice, a lowely man’ voice, When he
coines to the Opera, its nsually i the middle of the first act. He
knocks gencly throe times on the door ol Bes Five The fiest time
this happened, | was surprised, bur he said to me ‘Den’t be
frightened, Madame Cirv. T'm the Opera ghose!™

The two mapagers looked at the Inspector, whe put bas fingers
tr his forehead to give hs opnion that the widow was mad,
Madame Giry told about the ghosts generosaty-—about the
uaney and lietle presents he liad left for her.

Finally, Monsiesr Moncharmin said, “That's cnough, Madame
Giry, ¥ou can go” L'hen he told the inspector that they no
longer needed that madwoman’s services. When they were wone,

*Ia _fm'p'e’ EURERHED 1‘.!'}" |-E:'|.|ft'l."}".



the managers decided that they should inspect Dox Five for
themselves,

Chapiter 3 The Angel of Music

Christine Disé did not immediately continue her trinmph at the

Odpera. After that famous nighe, she sang only once. It seemed,

that she was na longer in conool of her lif, I believe Christine
Duaad was frightencd by what had happened o her, [ lave a letter

of hers from this period: “I dont know nyself when T sing”

weote the poor child. The viscount, Racul hagny, ied
unsuccesfully to see her. He wiote 1o her and desperately wated
for het reply. When it came, he read:

M omiear:

I have not forgotten the linds buy whe went juto the sca to
eseus my sear. [ oam going to Poemos-Guitee, where wry father s
buried with his vicdin, You knew nry father and he was very fond
of vow. Twill go to the graveyand of the littde church whers we used
t play as children. Aral where we said poodbve for the last time.

Vusconnt Chagny hurried to the train station. He read
Chrislines note again and again, and remembered die swectost
days of his chitfdhood. He questioned the train driver and learned
thar a young lady who locked like a Parisian had gone to Perros-
Guirre the day before and was staying at the Setting Sun. As he
came pearer and nearer to her, he fordly rememberad the story
of the Anpgel of Music, '

Christing Daad’s father wax a poor Scandinavian farmer, and 3
talented vialinise. His wife died when Chrisline was only sx, o
he sold his farm and went to Uppsala, the nearest cown, in search
of fortune. But he tbund only poverty

He remrned to the counlry, where he contittued o play his
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violin and s danghter sang. One day 2 music teacher, Monsieur
mlerivs, heard them and took them to Gathenburg. He thought
(it tho Dather was the best violinist in the world, and the
daughter bad enormons mlent. Valerius paid for her education
amd she made rapid progress. She was charming, pretry, and exger
to please. When Monsieur Valérius and his wite moved o
France, they teok Daaé and Chrsring with them. badame
Valérins treated Christine 4s o daughrer.

Ome summer, Daaé took Chrisdoe to Permos-Guiree, In a
faraway carner af Brittany, for a week. He played his violin and
she sang in the small towns, They slepe at night in farm buildings
and they would not take any money for their music. People
could not understand the behavior of s farmer with bis pretry
ehild who saog lke an angel from Heaven, But they followed
them from village to village.

One day, 2 lietle bay was out for a walk on a soetch of golden
bearh. He followed the lictle girl whose pure, sweel voics secmed
ty capture himn, There was a high wind which blew Christine’s
scarf a, Lo sea, She cried out, but the scarf was already far away
ant the waves. Then she heard a voice say: It all right, I'll go and
gor your scarf out of the sea’”

And she saw a liede boy running fast. He brought it back and
Christine langhed and kissed him. That boy was Raoul Chagny,
who was staying at Lantinn with his aune,

That week, they played together every day Oue day
Christing's father, who often told them stories, told them ane
that began: “Litcle Lotle thought of everything and nothing.
She loved her tovs, her lirtle red shoes, and her wiolin. But mast
of all, she loved to hear the Angel of Music when she went
tw sleep”

The Angel of Music was in all of Daddy Daag’s srories. Tle
always said thar every grear musician received a visit from the
Angel at least onee in his ife. 1 the Angel visam u stoall baby; that
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child grows up to play the violin at the age of six better than men
of fifry, This is what happened to lictle Lotte.

Mo one over sees the Angel, but he 15 beard by those whao are
meant to hear him, Fle often comes when they least expect hin,
Then they Lear heavenly imwsic, and a divine voice that they
temember all their lives. People who are visited by the .-"mgr.i
cannot toach an instooment, or open their mouths to sing;
without producing sounds that put all otler buman sounds ta
sharne, Then penple who da not knerwe that the Angel has visited
those peaple say that they have genius.

Titile Christine asked her father if he had heard the Angel of
fvlusic. Bue Draddy Thaaé shook his head sadly. ' Then s eyes it upl
and he said, “You will hear hitn one dav, my clald! When T am in
Heaven, [ will send him o you!”

Three years later, 1daoul and Chrstine met again at Perros—
Cuiree. Monsicur Valerius was dead, but hes widow renuaned in
Frunce with Draaé and his daughter. The young man. Raoul, had
romme to Perros, hoping to find them, and went straight o the
housc where they used to sty

Christine turned red when she saw Faoul, They talked shyly
until evening, telling each other things, but not their true
feelings. When Raoul left, he kissed Christines rembling hand
and said, " Mademoiselle, [ will never forget you!™ He went away
regretting his words becavse lie knew that a poor ginl like
Christine could never be the wife of a viscount,

Her father died, and suddenby she seemed o have lost, with
him, her voice, her soul, and her genins. She contnuoed w live
with Madarme Valérius and went Lo o very One muosic seleool,

The first tme Ranul saw Christine an the Oipera, he was seruck
by her begory and the memories it broughe back. He follosred
her, bue she did noc see him, [le suffered berause she was very
beautiful and be was sty and dared not admde his Tove, not even
tor hitmself, Then came che lightning flash of that performance:
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o anel’s woice was heard on earth—and 1 caprured his hearc
apnd then ... and then there was that moan'’s voice behind the
Anor-—"You must love me!”—-but no one in the oom . ..

Why did she laagh when he reminded her of the scadf 7 Why
didu’t she recopnize him? And why had she written to him?

At last he meaclied Perros. Raoul walked ineo che smoky sitting
wom of the Serting 5o and at once saw Christine, smiling and
sliownng no surprise.

“8Sa you have come,” she said T knew I would find vou here
when | came back fioan church because someone told me vou
had come™

" he?™ asked Raoul, saking her lietle hand in his.

"My poor father, who 15 dead”

Then Raoul asked, “Did vour father tell vou that § love you,
{Christine, and that T cannot bive without yous™

Christme’s face was red. In a trembling voice, she said “Me?
You're dreaming, my fricnd!”

And she burst out liughing to hide her fechings.

“T2on’t langh, Christine; T am gquite serious,” Paoul answered.

And she replied seriously, T did not make vou come Lo tel] me
thityes like that.”

"¥ou made me come, Christine. You knew that [ would hurry
to Perros. How could you send tha leter, i you did not think
laved voud™

*I don’t know what I thought. Maybe | was wrong to write o
¥ou. Your sudden appearance e my dressing room the oller
evening reminded me of the time long pase, 7

PF.aml noticed that Christine was upset. He asked her why she
had linghed when bie reminded her of the scarf and why she lad
lretended chat she Jid nat koow hitm, Baoul was surprised ar the
ranghness of his questions, when he had wanted to speak words
of pentleness and love. But he could sce no WAV QUt eXCepPr to
beluve uniplensa il
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“You don't answer!” he sald angrily and wohappily. “Well, ]
will apswer for yon. It was because there was someone in the
coom, Christine. Someone who you did not wish to know that
you cowld be Interested in anyone elscl”

“What are you saving? Who are you referring to?”

“To the man you spoke to and said, ‘T sing only for voy
Toanighe [ gave you my souf and ! am dead!™

*Then you were listening behind the door?™

“Yes, because I love vou ... And I heard everything ..

“You heard whaes” she asked, becoming strangely calm.

“He said ro you, ' Christine, vou must love mel™ _

Suddenly, she looked very unwell. Raoul rushed to catch her
before she fainted, but she quickly recoversd.

“Tell me all that you heard,” she said.

“T heard hitn say, “Your soul 1 # beautifil thing, child, and 1
thunk you. No king ever received such a fair gift. The anpels in
Heaven cried tonight™ _

Christine’s hand covered her heart and ber eves stared alead
like a madwornan's, Raoul was struck with terrar.

*Christing!” The young man tried to take her in his arms, but
she escaped and mn away.

R.aowl did not know what to do. The hours that he had hoped
to spend with the voung girl slipped past. She stayed in her room
and would not dine with him, Later that evening, he wenet to the
graveyard, then climbed the hill and sat down. He looked ot
ovar the sca, abd was surtonnded by icy darkmess, but he did not
teel the cold Hearing a noise, be turned and saw Chnstone
corning toward him!

“Raoul, [ have decided to tell you something very serious . ..
Tlo way remember the story of the Angel of Musics”

O conrse, [ do,” he said. T believe your father first told ic ta
us here”

"And here he sadd, “When I am m Heaven, nwy child, I wil}
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sepd himt to val! Well, Raoul, my father is in Heaven and T have
heen visited by the Angel of Muosic. He comes to iy dressing
gt b @ive e lessons daily”

“In your dressing roant?” he repeared.

“Yey, that is where you heard him ™

#1? | heard the Angel of Music:™

CHe was e one who was talking when yor were jistening
behind the door. But T thought T was the ooly uvne to hear s
yoice. Tmagine how surprised I was this motning when you told
-ne that ¥ou eould hear him too”

Faoul burst our laughing, which made Christine very angry
She said. “Ifyou had apened the door, you would have seen that
tl ere was nobody in the room!”

“That's true! 1 did vpen the door, when yon were gone, and [
found no one io the room,”

"R

1'he wiseonnr answered, V' Well, Chriskne, I think thar somebody
i tuaking: fun of you”

She eried out angrily and ran away He ran atter ber, but she
sheated, "Teave el Leave me!™ and she disapprared.

Boaoul requened to the Setdng Sun, feeling very sad and dred.
Lihrstine had gone to her room and would not speak to him., [e
went 4o bed and wied to sbeep. Thete was oo sound fiom
Clirissine’ roont.

However, about eleven-thirey, he heard her leave ber mom,
and he heard her speaking to someone downstars, He looked
aut af the window and watched her leave, He climbed down the
orec autade his bedroom window and went after her.

The next morning he was brought back, more dead chan alive.
Fle had been found stretched out on the steps of dhe lde church.
The owmer of the Serting Sun tock hion in and immediately Tan o
Llristine, They did their best o help him and he soon opened his
syes. When he saw his friend’s charming face, he recovered quickly.
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A tew weeks later, after the tragedy ac the Oper, which vou
will svon know abuut, the police spake t Viscount Chagny abaut
that mghe at Perras-Cuiree, He told them that he had followed
Christine to the church, where she knele down at ber father’s grave
and began to prav. At midnight, Mademoiselle [hgé liffed her cves
to the sky and srerched oue her arms, Suddenly, Raoul heard the'
most perfect music, It was a picce of music that Monsicur Daaé:
used ta play to them when they weee children—The Resirrection of
Lazans.* Christine stood up and waiked o the e, bue she did
nat sec or hear Raoul. When Raoul got up 0 Jeave, 4 skull rolled
toward him . . . then another . . . and another. There wege hutdreds
of them up aganst the wall of the church, held o position by a
wire. He had seen these skolls when he had besr ac the church
cather that day, as they are ofien seen in old Breton chuorches, Then
ha saw a shadow tove along the church wall. He ran up. The
shadow pushed open the door and eneered the church, R aoul
caught hus coat, The shadow turned around and Faoul sgw . the
face of Neath wilk a pair of buent-our eves. He eold the palice thar
he felr he had been face-to-face with the devil ‘Then he fainked,
and lie saw nothing again until he was in the Netung Sun.

*

At the opera house, Monsicar Bichard and  Monsieur
fancharmin went to have u look ar Box Five, They stood helow
und locked up. It was dark in the theater, but both men saw a
shape in the box, At that merment, they seized cach otherks hand,
They stood, wide-cyed, but the siape had disappeared. They
went out and spoke ubout what they had scen, Monchurmin had
seen 3 face of Death resting on die edge of the box. Ridard had
seen the shape of an old woman who looked like Madame Giry.,

* The Ressention of Lacane: 3 pieve of e abour o man wiha comes ik o
life after deatlr.
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They both mn to Box Five, langhing like madmen, went
im.jrlc..and found no shape at all. They looked uader the
fupniture in the box, bue found nothing. There was nothumy
differ=nt about this box.

“Those people are making fools of 18l said Mousicwr
Richard. “On Satunday, let’s both see the podformance from Box

Frwe

Chapter 4 The Curse

{1n the Saturday morning, the managers found 1 Jetter from (305

My Drear Marvagers:
S0 it 15 ey be war bebween us?
I vou sill care far peace, hore are my Four conditions:
1. ¥ou roust give me back iy prrvate box for oty use only.
2. The parc of Margaria will be sunp this evening by Chgstine
Dasé—rnot Cirlote, who will be sick.
o1 tmast have the loyat services of Madame Giry, my box-
keeper, and you will give her back her job immediacely:
4. Eeply by loter through Medwme Giry, who will ke sure
thuat it reaches e, supmy chae vou accepe the concditions o my
memorandum book and will pay my allowanee, I will inform
vou bater hewr you will gove 1t to me
If vona refise, you will pertorm Foust tonight in o house witl a
FUFEE OR Q.

G,

At that moment che door opened. It was Madame Giry,
holding a Jetter in her land.

“Excuse me, gendemen, but | had a lerter this mornmg, from
he Opera ghost He rald me to come to ¥ou, that vou had

‘merhing e L,
She was upable to complete her sentence because she saw

25



Monsieur Richard’s face, which was a terrible sight. He scized

her, spun her arcund, und kicked her ont—leaving a footprine oo
the back of her skirt. Fhe Opera rang with her screams and'

violent protests as she threatened him.

About the same time, Carlotra, who lived in 3 3mall house e
Rue du Faubourg St. Honord,*® was brought her letters, There
Wis otie written in red iok which said:

If vou appear wonght, you rmst be prepared for @ grear
tisfesrtune at the monent when you open your month ta sing—
a wistortune worse than death.

She had never recerved a letter as threatening as this, and she
thought there was a plot igmnst her, but she was not going to be
fighrened.

In fact, if there was a ploe, it was led by Carlotta herself againse
poor Christine, who did not suspect it at all. Carlotta had never
forgiven Christing for ke miumph she achieved when she took
Catlotras place. After thar nipht, Cardotta never missed a
performance and asked hee powerfud friends ro persuade e
managers nat to ggve Christine an opportanity for a fresh
triumph. New, she collacted all of her supporters and teld them
st Christine 17326 was threatening her, She asked them to fill
the hotuse that mght with her, Carlotta’s, admirers.

Monsieur Richards secretary called ta ask about lier health.
She teplied that she was well, but that “even i she were dving”
she would sing the pare of Margarita that evening.

It was Ove o’clock when the mail brought a secand letser in
red ink. Tt was short and sienple:

You have g bad cold IF wou are wise, vou will see chac it is
ITeadness oy oo sk toaghi

* Ruc de Fauboorg St Honerd: o Gemows steet in Pars Booe 15 the French
wonl #or street,
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Carlotra was not afraid; her friends were all at the Opera that
pight and they were looking around for the enemy. The only
prusual thing was the presence of Monsieur Richard and
IAensicur bonclarnun in Box Five,

Monsicur Richard, who was sittig in the ghost’s own char
sked Moncharmin, “Well, has the ghost whispered a2 word in
FOUr L i_,-'t:t?"

“YWait, don't be in such a hurry,” mwplicd Moncharmin, *“The
performance has only just begun and you know dhat the ghost
Jues not usually come until the middle of the first ace”

Nothing happened during the firse ace, but this did not surprise
Carlocts’s friends beeause Margarita does not sing in this act. The
managers looked at each other when the curein came down.

¥ 'hat’s ote!” said Monchacmin.

“Yes, the ghost s late,” said Richand.

“It’s not a bad performance,” said Moncharmmn, “for an apera
house witl: 4 curse on it”

Richard smiiled and poinred to a fat woman jn a bright dress,
sitting betwezn two men whe were wearing cheap coats.

"Who ate they?” asked Moncharoin,

“They are nry servant, her husband, and her brother”

“Did vou give them their tickets?”

“1 did . .. My servant has novet been ro the Ohpera before and,
a she s now going o come every night, I wanted her to have 2
aoad sear, Afrer ronight, she will be showing other people o
theirs™ Monsieur Richard explained that he wanted his servant
to have Madane Girys job. Maybe then there would be no
surprises in Box Five,

Then Christine Draaés came on stage as Siebed, looking
tharming in her boy's clothes. When Margarita crussed the
stage and sang her only two lines for this second act, Carlotta
was raceived enthusiasiically by the andience. But noilong elsc
Lippened.
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The managers stepped out at the end of the second act, and
whean they returnad they found a box of candy on the little shelf.
Who had put it there? They asked the box-keepers, but none of
thern knew., They returmed and found 2 pair of opera glasses,
Fyerything that Madame Giry had told them retarned to their
wemory .. oand then | they seemed o feel some strngely cold
air around them .-, They sat down i silence,

As Christine began to sing, she saw Viscount Chagny sitting
next re his brother, and from that momenr, her voice seemed less
sure, less clear. The wisenunt pur his head in his hands. The couns,
beside him, was upset because after Raoul had returned from
Perrus, the count had asked Christine Daaé for an appointment,
bt she refised to see him. He had wanted to speak to her about
Raoul, and was very anooved with her

Raoul thought only af the latter he had received from
Christine after thar might in Permos. She rold him thar he must
not tey to see her again. She said that she would never forget lim
and i he loved her, be wnuld do what she asked, Their lives
depended on it

Carlotta entercd. The andience clapped loudly, She sang with
all her heart and soul, when suddenly ... a termbie thing
happened. Faust sang ta her and Margarita replied, but not in her
bBeautiful voice, it with the voice of 3 foad:® Co-ack!” There wwas
a look of confudon on Carlotta’s face and on he faces of che
audience, This was a disasrer!

Iduring  these fess moments, in Box  Five, Monsteur
Moncharmin and Monsicur Richard turned very pale. Thev had
felt e breath of the ghost. Moncharmins hair stood on end.
Richard wiped his forehead. Yes, the ghost was there, around
them, behind them, beside them: thev felt bis presetice without
seelitg him, They heard his breath, close, close, close to them!
‘They trembled. They thought of running away ... They darcd
not ... They dared not make a mowe or exchange a word. The
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ghost would know that they knew Le was there! Whal was going
te happen?

This happencd:© Ca-ack!™

Their scream of horror was beard all over the house. They
lacked at Carlotta, but they did ot seem o recognize her. Thar
gitl was giving a signal for some greater disaster! Now they
anderstood. The ghost had warned them The house had 3 curse
art it! Richard called to Cadote, " Well, go on!™

She began to sing ... then .. the toad started again! ™ Co-ack!
Co-ack!”

The managers fell back in their chairs. The ghost was Tughing
qaictly behind their backs! And, at last, they heand his voice in
their ears, the impossible voice, the mouthless voice: “She is
singing tonight to bring the chandelier down ™

They both looked up and made a terrible ay LU'he chandslicr
wes comng down! e erashed! Shouts of tetmr rang out and
thers was a wild msh for the doors,

The next day, the newspapers teld the story. The chandelier
hud crashed on the head of the poor womun who had come to
the Opera for the first time in Dier life, tie one who had been
grven Madame Giry's Job of bow-keeper. She dicd on the spot,
e newspaper wroke;

TWO HUNDRED KILOS
{ON THE HEAD (OF A SERVANT

*

That wagic evening was bad for everybody Carotta was very
wmwel] afterward. Chrisdne Dusé disappeared after the pedorimange
and was not seen by anyone for two wecks, Raoul w3 seriously
warrled at never seeing her name on the program; Fanst was
played without her

Raoul went to the managers’ office to ask why Christine had
disappeared, and he found them both locking  extrernely
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worried. They would not speak about the fall of the chandelier,
but they were, ar least partly, responsible. Tt had been decided diar
the cause of death of the servant was accidencal. bue that the ald
ind new matagers were responsible for not noticing that the
chandelier needed repairs,

The managers became impaticnt with everyone, excopt
Madame Giry—who had her job back. They were impatient
with the viscount when he asked abaut Cliristine. They told him
that she was awsy for oo volimited period, for reasons of health.

The viscount decided to visit Madame Valérius, She was sick
it bed but agreed to see him.,

"Monsieur Chapny!” she cried happily. “Its Heaven that sends
vou here! We can talk of frer'”

“Madame | . - where 15 Christine:"
e

“She is with her good genius!” the old woman answered

calmly, *“"With the Angel of Music?” Then, putting her finger o -

her dips, she warnad him, “You mast not ¢ell aovore! I'm very
fond of you, Mongeur Raoul ... And Christine i toa!™ -

“What makes you think chat?” he asked in a low veice.

“She used to speak about you cvery day, She tuld me that you
Liad asked ber to marry you.” The old lady began ta laugh.

Baoul jumiped vp from his chair, embarrassed and suffering
groar tertuares,

"Where are vou peing? Do you think T will Tet you go like
thats” she asked. “F'm sorry fior laughing, but dido'e -}'{Ju know?
Did you Wknk that Christine was free?™

"'ls she going to marry someone?” he asked, trying to control
hus cmotions.

"INo! But you know as well as T do thut Christine couldn’
marry, even if she wanted to!”

“But I don’t kuow anything about it Why can't she?”

“Because the Angel of Music torbids her to! He tells her thin
it she got maeried, she would never hear hime again. That's alll
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and that he would go away forever! So, you onderstand, she can't
let the Angel of Music go.

“Yex, yos” Raoul answered, understanding nothing.

*| thought she told you all this w Perros. Ie arranged to most
per there ar Dasés grave, and he promised ro play her The
Kesurrecrion of Lacarus on her father’s violin.®

“Nadame, will you kindly tell me when: thiut genins lves?™

“Tnn Heaven!”

This simple old woman’s answer sueprised hnn. He dic not
ktiow what to siv. He now realized the possible state of mind ol a
mirl brouglt up by 4 superstitious Scandinavian vielinist md a
superstitious old woman. The thought of this made him fecl
urcomfortable,

“Herw long has she known this genio?™

“About threc monchs .., yes, three months ago he started
giving her lessons.”

“The geons gives her Jessons? Where?”

“In her deessing roam. In the Opera at cight o’clack in the
merning, when there is o onc around!™

Ruoul quickly left and went to his brother’s house. “hat a
fool [ have beent™ he thoughe,“How cruel she is!”

His brother was waiting for him and Raoul fell into his arms
like a child, O course, Racul could net tell him the story of the
Anpel of Music—Philippe would think Christing was mad-

Philippe told Tacul, “Christine was seen ast mighe e 2
carriage, with a man, in the woods.”

At first, Raoul refused to believe this. But his brother wodd him
4l the details, She had been seen nding i a carriage, with the
window down. The moon was shining brighdy. The man’
shadowy Bgure was leaming back in the davk anl the carriage
went 5o faster than a man walking. )

That evening, Raoul went oue with the count for dinaer, but
left carly. He found himself by ten o'clock i the woods where
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Christine had been seen. [t was bitterly eold, and there was o
one on the mt.l‘ which was brightly Lt from the moon. He
waited. After half an bour, 2 carriage ruried the corner and came
yuictly and slowly in his direction.

“Christing!” Her namne burst out of him, It was 3 great ﬁistnkﬂ
because it caused the cardage to siddenly Hly past hing ar grear
speed. Someone guickly closed the window and her face
disappeated. She had passed williout answering his Cry.

In the morwng, his servane found hin sitting on bis bed. He
bad mot undeessed. When he v Raouls face, the servant
thought that a disuster had happened. Ragul rpuckly conk his
letters from the servant’s hand, He recognized Christing’s paper
atul handswriting. She had writcen:

Draar:

Co ta the masked party ar the Operz on the mght after
tomtormow, At midnight, be in the lietle sooms beliind the stajrs,
Send near the door dust leads to the great hall. Memt mention
this apponcnicnt to anvone ont earch, Wear a white mask and a
whice: coat, If vou e me, do not o vourself be recimized.

Christine,

Chapter 5 A Party Mask

The letter was covered with mud and written on ic was To be
banded to Viscount Chagny. 14d she throw it from the carriage,
hoping that somcone would find iv and deiiver it? That is, in fact.
what happened.

Raoul read it aguin and aguin. Whase prisoner was she? What
vl person bad careied her away ... and how? And new he was
taking her for drives in the woods, Raoul pitied her—and he
cursed her, Bur, he bought 2 whire mask,
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ile climbed the grand smirs at five minutes te twelve, and
entercd the room mendoned in Christine’s letrer. He four] it full
of people—those going for supper passing those who wens
returning from taking a plass of wine.

He did not have to wait long. Someone in a black mask and 2
Black coat gave a quick squeere to the tps of his Ungers. He
understood dhat it was Christine and followed her.

“Tz that you, Christine?” he asked, between his werh

She raised her fingers to her lips, warning him not to mention
hor naime again.

ITe was affaid of lasing her, after meeting her again in such
strange circumstances. His feelings of anger were gone. Hue was
reacdy to forgive her. Fle was in love. As he followed his guide, he
noticed 2 group crowding around a persan whose mask, srange
wannet, and terrible appearance were causing great excitcment,
[t was 2 tnan dressed all in ved, with a lage bat and feachers on
top of 3 wonderful mask of death. Fle wore 2 long red coat with
gold letters that reads Dont touch me! T am Red Deatlt!

As Raoul passed by, he oealy cricd out, “The face of Death
ron Perros-Guiree!” He had recognized hun, but Christine took
him by the arm and led him away, They went up two Howors,
where she took him to the back of 2 private box and told him
nal to show himsel, Raoul took off s mask; Christine kept
lices am,

She stopped and listened, then said. “He's gone up bigher ...
(th, ne! Hes coming down again'™

Ruoul saw 3 red foot follmwed by another . .. then the whole
ted coat of Red Death met his eyes, And again he saw the face of
13eath that he had seen in Perros-{iuiree. Just as Raoul started to
rushy out, Christine closed the door. Racul tried w push her but,
with surprising strength, she stopped him.

“He will not escape!” said Raoul.

“YWhe? Who will not?™ she asked in a changed voice.
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“The cvil genius of the churchyvard ar Petros' Red Dreach!
Your Angel of Music! ! will take off his mask and sec who }-‘ﬂl.'ll
lowe: and wha loves yon!™

He borst into 2 mad laugh. Cheistne stretched out her arms
across the door ta prevent him from opening it,

“In the name of uur love, Raoul, you will not pass!”

Lic stopped. Whar had she said? In the nawe of their love? She
had aever admitted before that she loved hin, But she had had
enougl uppartunities. She was trying to gain a féw seconds! She
wanted o give Ked Death Hime to escape!

With childish haered, Raoul sail, “You are Iving! You do not
love me and you have never loved me! Whar a poor fool [ must
bel Why did you give me every reason for hope, &1 Perros? I am
40 honest iman and [ believed that vou were an honest woman
but your only intenton was to deceive me. And FOU s amuné
this party with Red Death! T hate yoo!™

And he burst Into tears. She allowed him o insult Ler. She
thought of only one thing, to stap him leaving the box, “You will
2k me for forgiveness one day, for all thase ngly words, Raoul
And when yon do, 1 will forgve you!™ , -

He shook his head. “No. na, you have Jriven me mad! T had
only one hope—to give 1y name to a pear orphan!™

“"Racul! How can you say that to med”

I will dic of shame!”

"Moo dear, Bve™ sad Christine’s ol ice,
. anged voice, “Good
Haoul ore

You mmst lel me come and chap for you fiom nme o dme”
he said angnly. |
wy : :
Iwill never sing again, Raoul’ You will never see me again!™
What darkness are vou returning tof What Heaven or what
Hell?” |

I came to tell vou, dear, but 1 cant tell vou now

: RECP
would not helieve me. It is inished ™
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Sne spoke so desperatcly that he began to feel regret for his
ruelty. “Anyone would be deceived by all of ths, Explain
voursch, Christine,” he sl

hristine sunply took off her mask and said. "'Dear, it is a
apedy!™

“My dearest, my dearest!” he cried when he saw her face It
brought both surprise and terror fo his heart. The shadows under
her eyes! 'The gray skin! The loes! *You pramised to forgmeye

me!”

“Maybe . .. maybe onc day” she said as she pat her mask on
and left, forbidding him to follow. He dared not oy to {olloror laer,
bk watched her unil she was out of sight.

Raoul went to lock for Red Death, but could not find him.
At rwo o'clock, e went to Chrstine’s drossing room and
knacked genlly on the door, but there was no answer. He went
imsidie and hid in the inncr rootn, which was separated from the
dressing roam by 4 curtain.

€ hristne entered, took off her mmask, and threw it on the
table. She Tet her preety head fall inve her vwo hands. Whar was
she thinking of 7 Raoul heard her sofely say, “Poor Erik!™ Wha
was this Erik? And why was Christine pirying Erik when Raoul
was so unhappy? She wrote somerhing on a piece of paper, but
she seemed 1o he Listening. Baout also listened. Where did that
strange sound come from? A faint singing scemed W0 come from
the walls.

Paoul could now hear the words. He heard 4 man’ voice, a
beautifil soft voice commng nearer and nearcr .. through the
wall, Christine rose and spoke to the voice. “Here T am, Erik. 1
am ready. But yon are late.”

Taoul looked cut from behind the curtain, but could noc
selieve his cyes, Christine’s [ace lit up with a beautiful smile. The
voice was singing 1 he Fadding Night Sorg. Raoul pulled back the
curtain, Christine was moving to the back of the room, whete

35



one whaole wall swas 2 great mirror. He could see Chrisdne in che
mirror, but not himself, as he was behind her.

The singer continued. Cheistine vontinued walking toward
the mirror. Ranul reached our to the “two” Chostnes—the real
one and the ene in the mirror. But he was suddenly chrown
back when an icy wind swept over his face. He sow pot two, bue
four, eight, twenty Christines spinning around him, laughing at
him and cscapitie so quickly that he could not couch one of
thetn.

He rushed up to the mirror, I1e struck at the walls, Nobody!
And the voice continued singing, ™ Cur lives are joined for cver and o
day™”

Raoul sat down and lat his head fall into his hands, %hen he
ruised 1, tears tan down his cheeks—tears conmmon o all the
lovers on earth. “Whe is this Erik™" he asked.

*

The nexe day, when Raoul went ta visic Madamse Valérius, to his
great sutprise he found Christine sitting next o the okl woman,
who was sleeping. He noticed a pluin pold ring on Christine’
finger. When he asked lier aboue i, she answered that it was a
present. Raoul, his heart breaking, asked to whom she had
promised berself. Bur Christine refused to give any informadon.

Then, Raoul rold her what he had seen and heard the
previous night. When he told her thar he knew the Angel of
Music was called Erik, she turned as white as 2 sheet.

O, unlappy man! 1o you wang to be killed?* she asked.

Raoul answered, “Maybe" with so much desperate hove tlat
Christine could nor hold hack her tears. She rook his hands in
hers and said, “Raoul, you owist never try o understand the
mystery af the many voice”

"Iz the mvitery so terriblc?”

“Lhere is no more awful mystery on this earth. Swear to me

36

St you will make no amempt Lo lind out, and that you will
newer come to my dressing room unless [send for you

“Then promisc to send for me sometimes, Christine.”

1 promise”

“meﬂ?”

HTomortoww.

“Then [ seeear ta do as you ask”” Ie kissed her hands and went
aweay, cursing Erik and promising himself to be patient.

Chapter 6 Tragedy

‘I'he next day, when Raoul sew Christine ae che Opera, she was
still wearing the plan gold ring, She was gentle and kind to him,
and the tilked to him about the plans which he was forming, of
his furare, of his corzer.

He told her that the date of his journey to the North Pole had
heen put forward and that he would leave France in three or
four weeks. She wanted him o look forward o this journey,
hut without her love to rike with him he found little joy in
these plans.

I'hen, Christne had an idea, an idea thai filled her with great
happiness. “ We will have these three or four weeks fo pﬂ::tl:nd_.
to pretend that we have plans to marry when you retarn. This is
a happirtess that can harm ne onel”

Fuoul liked the idea. He took her hand and said,” Mademonselle,
1 have the honot to ask you to marry me”

%¢3h, Raaul, how happy we will be! We will play at chis all day
lotysl™ . ,

Fuvery afternonn Sor the next week. they mel in the singers
dressing room and ammsed themselves by dining on three cowrkics
and two plasses of wine. They made promises to cach r*.uﬂlcri as
children do when they play. But then, at the end of that Orse
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week, Raoul stopped plaving and said, “T will got go 1o the
North Pole!™

Christine soddenly discovered the danger of the game and
disappearcd for two divs. When she returmed, she had good
tiews. Carlotta Tud noe been able to appear on the stage vince thar
night of the terrible “Co-ack! and now Christne lud been
offered her place.

Racul wene to listen to her It was 3 oew triamph for
Chnstine, but for Raoul it was hell, A voice whispered in his ear,
“Slte 15 wearing the ring agin tonight; and you did not give it to
her. She gave her soul ggain tonight, and did not give it to vou. If
she will not tell vou whar she has been doing the past two
days . .. you must go and ask Erik!”

He ran hackstage after the performance and rhrew hipsclf
on his kuees in front of her. He swore to her that he would go
to the North Pole, bur that she must never again take fhom him
one hour of the happiness she had pronised. She cried. They
kissed,

Suddenly, she moved away from him and Bstened at the door,
Thew, in a low voice, she whispered, “Be happy, Raoul. T sang for
you totdight”

Thetr time together over the next weekys was spent going for
walks~—nat outdoors in the frosh air, but inside the Opera with
ity seventcen floors. Once, when they were passing a trap doeor,
Raoul stopped over the dark hole and said, “You have shawn ine
all ever the upper part of your apera house, Christine, but there
ave strange stories about the lower pait, Shall we go down?”

In a trembling voice she whispered, “Never! ... T will nat let
you go thete! Besides, its not mine. Everything that is undergrornd
befongs ro fim ™

“So he Lives down there, does e? Racul said angrily,

“[ never said so. Come away!™

She tried to pull him away, but he was atizacted to the dark
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bole. Suddenty, the trap door clesed, and so quickly that they did
ot see the hand that ¢closed it. They stared in silence.

“Maybe hr was there)” aoul said, ar last.

“No, 1o, it was the trap door shutlers, They st der
sumething, you know, so they open and close the doors for no
reson”

“But supposc it was he, Christine!” _

“Mic, 1o, he has shut himself up; he's workang,”

“hat is hie working ar?” ’

“(th, something terrible! Bur its better for ws . whr_-n he’s
working at that, he sees nothing; he does not f:at, drink, ct.nr
breathe for marsy days and nighes ... he has no time o amuse
himself with trap doors”

“Are you afraid of him?” Raoul asked.

“Na, no, of course not,” she said. Buot for some days after that,

she avoided the wmp doors.

Ome afternocn she arrived Yate, her face desperately pale and

ssperately red.
her“f}?::illd ::‘tmve ';?uu from his power, Christine, I swear it. And
/A ink of him agmn ™
m:?;i:ﬁj she askf;iaﬂtmiug herself this doubt, dhis
enconragement, as she dragged the voung man up to the top
flear of the theater—fag, very far, from the wap doors.

“Higher!™ she kept sayimg,

Ti:-:ih :.:w:re 01 I:md:r the roof. And despire the care that she
tuok to Inok behind her at every moment, she failed to sec a
shadaw which followed her like her own shadow, Tr stnp]?::d
when she stopped. stareed when she started. Raoul sy nu@ng
either berause when he had Christine in front of him, nothing
interested him thut happened hehind. |

They reached the roof, [t was a beauotul spring evening.

“'Sundan we will s farther and faster than the clouds, to the erd
of fhe workl, and then you will leave me, Raoul. But if, when the
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mamettt comes for you to ke me away, I mhuse o go with
your —well, vou muost farry me oft by forcel”
"Are you aftaid that yoy will change your mind, Christine:™

“Ldon’t know: He is 1 devil” ihe saicl, as she sat wrapped in his

arngs “T am afraid now of going buck to live with him!™

“Whar makes vou go back, Cheistines™

“If 1 do bot go back, terrible misfortunes tnay happen! Bur

can't do it T can't! I know age aught to be sorry for people wha
live underground . .. But he i taa terrible! 1 have only one day
left; and iF I do not o he will come and get me with-his yoIge,
And he wifl drag me with him, underyraund, and g0 on his
kiiees in front of me, with hijs face ol Death! And he will tel] me
that he loves me! And be will cry! O, those tears, Raoul, those
tears m those two black holes, | caunet see those tears again!™

Raoul prossed her to his heart,

“Let us escape at once, Chyisgine!™

He tried o drag her away, but she scopped him.

“No, not now. Tiut would he too cruel. Let him hear me sing
tomaormow evening . .. and then we will go away. Come and get
me from my dressing roomy gy midnight cxactlyl He will be
waiting for me in the dining roam by the ke, We will be free
and you will ke me Tway! You most promise me that, Raoul,
even if I refuse, I feel that, if | g0 back this time, T mav never
retyrn” She stopped fur 3 mutnite, then said, “Did ],rr;u hear
something?”

“No, Ihesrd nothing” said Raopl,

“It’s terrible to be always ttembiing like this! But up here we
are it ne danger. We are ar home, in the sky, i the Open ir in
the light I have never seen fiiny by daylight ... ic must be awfal)
b, the frst time I saw him! T thought that he was going to die!”

."Why?" asked Raoul, frightencd by her strange words,

“Becawse [ had seen hipn!

Suddenly, both Raoul and Chrishne turned jround.
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“Someone is in pain,” said Waoul “Maybe someone has been
huet. D yon heae?”

‘T dont know Even when he i not there, my ears are full of
Lis sonnds, Still, if you leard .

They stood up and leoked around. There was no one. They
sal down again and Faoul said, “Tell me how you saw him fisst”

“1 had heard him for tiree months withoue seeing him. The
avst time I thought, as you did, that the divine voice was siging
in another room. I looked evervwhere, but T could not nd the
voice. And it not only sang, but it spoke to me and answored
my yuestions, like a real man’s voice. Bar it was as beantiful as
the voice of an angel. T had nover been visited by the Angel af
Music whom my fadier had promised to send me. T asked him if
Bie was the Angel of Music, and he replied that he was. Fram
that time, the voice and [ becames great friends, and he pave mc
lessons. In a few weeks” tiome, T hardly knew tiyselt when [ sang,
The voice said, "Wait and see; we will surprise Paris! Then 1 53w
you for the first time ome cvening, in the Opera. T was so glad
aud [ did nor think about hiding my fealings when I reached
my dressing roem, The voice notived. 1 told him about you aud
vy Feehings for vou, Then the voice was silens. T called to him,
but he did not reply. I was aftaid that he had gonc forever, That
night T tald Madime Valérios and she said. “Well of course,
the volce . jealous’™ And that, dear, made me realize that 1
lerve you ™

Neither Christine nor 1Raoul noticed the shadovy approaching
them. Chrastine continued to el Raouf her story. She told him
that the voice wanted to possess her and thar ifshe jrave her love
1o 4 human, he would go back tn Heaven. She did not want to
loge che Amgel of Music who was sent by her dear fatlier. She
tedd Faoul thal the vaice was jealous and that was why she
pretended not ro know Raoul when she opened Ler cyes and
saw him in her dressing oo Then, she dectded ta go to Perros
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to pray on her father's grave, and she told the voice that she was
going to ask Paoul to go too because she was annoved with the
volces arpumens with her about Raoul.

She told Raoul thae after the chandetier came down, she was
s0 happy that he was unhurt—she could see Raoul with his
brother—but she was afraid for the vwice. Then, in her dressing
rootn, his volce come to ber snd cornmanded her to come. She
explained that her tootn seemed o become longer and e
mirrors made such a seange affect thar before she knew it, she
was outside the room.

"1 eried out,” she told Raoul "A stonc-cold hand seized my
wist and Jdid ot let go. [ was in the bands of a man in a lage
coat and wearing 3 siask that d his whole face. My touth
opened to scream, ut a hand closed it . .. a hand that smelled of
death. Then [ fainted ”

She told Raoul that when she opened her eyes, she was being
carried through the underground cellars of the apera house. She
was taken through dark passages to the edge of a lake_ In the blue
light, she could see a hoat. The man took her in the boat across
tie lake to a preat room Alled with flowers and said, “Don't be
afraid, Christine; vou are in no danger” It was the voice! Tnil
that moment, she had not inugieed thal e voice and the Opera
ghost were the same.

"My anget equaled my amazement” she tald Baoul. T rushed
at the mask and tried to pull it off The man said, "You are it no
danger if vou do not onch the mask” He torced me into a chair.
The adventure was cxtraordinary, bue at least T was not in the
cellacs of the Opera. T was, however, with 2 very sttange and
mysterious man who had sueceeded in making chose celtars his
home  under the opera house, five floors below the level of the
ground. [ began to cry and the man undersnod nry tears becaose
be said, ‘It 18 true, Chrstine! T ant not the Angel of Music, aor a
senine, nor a ghost ., I an Erk!™
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“Chrsting” Faoul interrupted, “we are wrong to wail uatil
rothorrow everung; we should po immediately”

“If he does not hear mee sing toemorrow, it will causc him
uribearable pain .. and we risk haing killed”

“Dowcs he love you so nnech:”

“IHe would conunge imerler for me™

“TFhy did you go back ta him?™

“Because | had 1o, And vou will understand when § tell vou
lowey | left bom”

“Oh, T hare him!™ ceiad Racol, “And yon, Christing, do yon
hate him ton?”

"Moot said Christine simmply.

aoul, in lis confised emorioaal condition, aconsed Chrisrine
uf loving Erik, a man whe lived in ar underground palace. She
warned him that if she went back there, she would never returr.
Then, they sac it silence—the three of theto: the two who spoke
and the shadow chat listenad, behing deemn.

“Sitice vou do not bate hing, what fecling does he 8l youn
with?" asked P.aoul after some minmites.

“Horrar!” she sad. "I 1e Alls me with hotror, bat | do not hate
him. He loves me! He has an enormous and tragic love for me!
And when [ told him that 1 could anly hate him if he did not
give me my freedont, .. he offered it be offiered Lo show me
the mysterious toad. Buor then he sang and T was reminded that
he was stll the voace,

“The nexe day, he showed me his room, where he is writing
a piece of niusic called Don_fran Triwnphioe® which be hegan
twenty years ago. And when I asked him to play some of it for
me, he said, *You must never ask me thal, Svine muosic 15 so
terrible that it destroys all whe approach it” Then he suggested
that we sing something frem the Opera, but he said this in

* Lion Juan: the mwane for a man whe i5 2 great lover of woner.
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such a way that it was insulling to mie. and he intended this™
"Whar did you do?” Raoul asked. :
“We began singing and I sang with great sadness and terros,
which I had never done before. Suddenly, I nesded to see what
face was under that mask, the face of the voice, and [ tore off the
mask. Cth, hareor, horror, horror™
A far-away voice sadly repeated, “Horror' Horrod Horror!”
But the words were not clearly heard by the two lovers.

“If 1 live to be one hundred, T will always remember the cry of -

paitl atid anger which he made when the terrible sight appeared

m front of my eyes, The face of Death that you saw at Perros and _
at the masked party was a silent hotzor, net alive, Bue linagrine, the
four black holes of led Dearh’s mask suddenly coming to life te

express the extreme anger of 1 devil,

“T 2l to my knees and he cursed and shouted, ‘Look! You
want to see el Laok at Erik's face! Mow vou know the face of
the worce! V'm oz very good-looking man, arent [? When a
wonnfl has scen me, as you lave, she belongs to me! She loves

e forever! [ am 1Don Joan eriumphant” Aud when I rurned my

heud away, he angrily took my head with his dead firgers and
twisted them into my hair”

“Enough! [ will kill him' Tell me where the diring room on
the lake is and [ wilt kill him'” shouted R aouyl,

“Listen. Raoul, he dragged me by my hair and then . . . and
then . Oh, it's too terrible!l™ |

“Whar? Raoul asked, his voice flll of suffering and anger.

“He seized my hands and dug Uwm into his awfil fice. He
tore his flesh with my nails, He was shouting, ‘Muvbe you think
that | have another mask. Tear it off” And then e said, T am
bzt of death from bead to foof, and dhis iz 2 ded man wh [oves
you and will never, never leave you! You can never leave me
again. While you chought that meybe T was handsome, you could
go because T koew vou would renirn | . but now ¥ou know my
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uglness. Now you would run ey and never come back. 50 1
will keep you here! Why did vou want Lo see me, Chrstine? My
own father never saw me and my mother—in order not to see
je—gave me oy frse mask!”

"I 1ot go of me und cnied, a terrible cry of great pain and
sadriess. Then he went to his room and closed the door. 1
heard him play his Don fuan Teiumphant and it was both awful
and wonderful, It expressed cvery emoton, evary suffering
known to man. I opened the door and he rose, 'Brik] I cried,
‘show me your face without fear, You are the most unluppy
andd the most heavendy of men—a great gondus.” He f2ll ac my
teer. He kissed my deess, at the ankle, and did not sce that I
closed my cyes.

"MNaw, Baoul,-vou kinow the tragedy. o went on for two
weeks. T burned his muask. Fle was my futhiul slave. I gave him
such confidenee that he tock me in the boat across the lake and
let me through the gates that dlose the underground passages in
the Raue Scribe, Here a warriige waes wailing amd lovk us to the
woods. That night that we met vou was very dangerous far me.
TTe 1 very jealous of you. ! had to tell him that you were saon
going raav. Then, afrer two weeks, he believed me when 1 said.’I
will come hack!™

“And vou wemt back,” Raoul said painfully. “You tell me that
vou love me, but vou were free for only a few hours when vou
went back. Peemember the masked parrys”

“Yes, and thase hours T spent with you wire a great danger to
kaoth of us!”

“T doubted vour love Fie me, ducitg those hours”

3o oyou dowabt it still, Raoul? Bach of my wisits e Eok
increass my horoor of him! And I am so foghrened!™

“Tt do vou love me?” Raoul asked, “TF Rrik were good-
looking, would wou love me, Christine?”

She rose, put her armms stound the youns man’s head, and said,
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“IE T did not love you, I would not give vou tny lips! Take them
for the first time, and the last”

He kissed her and, as he did, the night broke like glass in a
termible storme. They ran away, their eves wild with terror. High
above e, tie burning eyves of Enk seared doam.,

Chapter 7 A Mysterious Disappearance

Racul and Cluistine did nol stop untl they came 1o the eighth
tloor. Suddenby; a strange-lonking man blocked their way:

“No, not this way! Quick! Go away quickly!”

“Who i3 he? Who is that man?” Raoul asked, a5 Christine
pulled him.

Christine snswered, “ItYs the Persian”

"“What’s he doing here?”

“MNobody knows, He is always m the Opera”

When they were hack in Christine’s dressing room, she told
Rououl that Erik had promised not to go behind the walls of her
dressing room agmn. They spoke about their plins for Lhe
following might,

“After the performance, he will be waiting for vou i the
dining room on the lake, won't he?™

s

“How are vou suppased to teach him?”

1 lave the key to the gate to the underground passage in Bue
Scribe, T can go straight to the odge of the lake ™

“(ive me the key, Christine.”

“Mever!™ she said. Suddenly, she changed color, “Oh, Enk!
Frik! Have pity on me!”

“What is it, Cheistine:™

“Lhe ong . .. the gold ring he gave me. When he gave ic to
me, he said, T will give yon vour freedon, bat only on condition
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that rhis ring is always on vour finger, T vou ever take it off, you
will suffer moy revenge!™

They both leoked for the ring but could nor find ic.

“SEhat will happen to us now? We can never find it

“Lets run away new,” Waoul said firmly

“INo! Tomorrow!” she answered, aned left him hurriedh

*

P.aoul wene home greatly upset, and as he went to hed thae night
he thought only about saving Christine. He thought of Erik, the
TLHOTISIEL,

Three times he shouted, “Curse him! ., . Curse bim! .. Curse
him!”

Bur suddenly, he raised himself on s elbows, Twe eyes, ke
btrning coals, had appearcd at the foor of his bed. They starcd at
Rim in the darkness of the night.

Foaoul was tot 2 coward, but he tembled, TTe put on his lamp
and the eves disappearcd.

R.anul thouyhe, “She told me that ks eves only showed in the
dark. His cyes have disappeared in the kght, but he may sdll be
there.”

He got up and looked under iz bhed, like a chuld. Then he
thought he was being foalish and got into bed again and put out
the Lunp. The eyes reappearcd.

He sat up and stared back at them and cred, “Is thar you,
Lrik? Man, gemus, or ghost, i it you?”

Raoul resched over and apened the drawer in the bedside
table, He took out his gun and aimed at the ewo cyes, The shot
made a terrible moise. Raoul could hear footsteps hurrving
along the passages. The eyes disappeared, The seraniz and Count
Milippe came running inte s tootn, terribly anxios.

"W hat is it?" Philippe asked.

] fired at twe stars that stopped me fiom sleeping.”
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“Are vou mad? lell me, Raoul. What happencd?™

"IN, ot not maid. Besides, we will soon see . " Raoul got ap
anid looked out the window. “T.ook! Blood! See? That’s 2 goad
thing! A ghost whe blecds is less dangerous!™

"Facull Baoul!™ shouted the count, shaking him.

“You can see the blood. T wasn't dreanung. They weren't sturs.
They were Hrik’s eyes | L and hete is his blood!™

The servant brought a lamp and they examined oueside the
window. The bleod went ap the side of the house,

“My dear brother, you have fired at a cat”" zaid Philippe.

Raoul continued o speak about the ghost and Erik, and bach
Philippe and the scrvant chought he was going tnad, Later, when
the judge received the report from the palice, he thought the
same thingr,

"Who i Lrik?"” asleed the coune,

“He 15 my rival. And if he’s not dead, it’s a pity”

Rapul sent the servant away, but he heard [Raoul say to the
count, 'l will carry off Christne Daaé onight

This phrase was afterward repeated to Monsieur Faurne, the
deezetive. But no one knew exactdy what was said between Qe
two brothers on thar mighr, The servants said that this was not
the first atpument between the brothers, Their voices carricd
threwugh the passuges, and thelr argnments were always about an
actress called Clhristine TIzaé,

The next morning the count, who was having his breakdast in
his study, sent for s brother. e handed Raaul 3 copy of the
Lpegue and said, " Bead that!”

The newspaper reported a prunise of marmage between
Viscount Raow Chamy and Mademniselle Cheistiie That. Ie
said thar Count Philippe Chagny intended to prevent the
purrige. The paper asked its readers if brotherly love wonld
trrivmph over romantic love.

“You sec, Raoul,” said the count, "vou are naking us look
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very foolish! Arc you going with her tonight? Surcly, you will
nat do anyrhing so foclish? 1 will prevent you!”
*Goodhye, Philippe,” said the viscount, and lett the room.
The count did not see Faoul again until that evening, at the
Opera, 2 few minates before Christine’s disappearance.

*

Raoul spent ]l of thar day preparing for the escape, und ir kept
him busy until nne o'clock at night. At that hour, a tmaveling
carriage stopped outside the Opera next to the three varriages
belonging te Carlotta, who was back in Paris, to Soreili, and o
Count Chagny. A shadow in a long Black coar and a soft Black
hat passed by the currlapes, examined the maveling carriage
carefully, went up. to the horse and driver, then moved away
without saying & word.

The detecrive afterward helieved thae this shadow was Viscount
Iaoul Chagny. Bue T do nat agree. 'LUhe viscount always wors a
tall hat. which was found later 1 think the shadow was the ghost,
wha probably knew all about the escape, as the reader will soen
bad out.

The opera honse was full and the viscount sat in a bus, alone,
hstening to Christine in Fawst, The audience, whe had read the
pucagraph in thul moruing's Fpogque, were flot warm toward her,
and <he was losing her confidence more and more. Juse then,
Carlutta entered and poor Christine recognized her rival. The
proud look on Carlotta’s face gave Chrisline lher confidence
bick. She forgat everything in order to triumph again.

Slie suny with all her heart and soul, and she succeeded m
winning hack her audience. A man stood up and resmaincd
“tanding, facing the singer. It was Raow). She sang the words, “My
Spirit is desperate o rest with you!” And at that exact moament,
the stage was suddenly in tomal darkness. Just as quickly, the lights
carme back on. But Christine Daad was no longer thers!
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Whar had happened? Where bad she gone? There was much
confusion on the stage and in the andience. Raoul bad cried ot
Count Philippe bad jumped up mn his box. People looked ac
them and wondered if this event. was connected in any way with
the paragraph in the jorning paper. Raoul hurriedly left his
seat, the count disappeared from his box, and everyone in the
audience spoke at once, trying to suggest an explination.

At last, the curtain rose and one of the sngers said in a sarioys
vorce, “Christine 133a¢ has disappeared in front of our eves ..,
and nobody can el os how!™

L]

Behind the curtain, thete was a crowd of singers, dancers, KCCTIETY
meni—and all were asking questions and shouating, Three men
stend together, talking m a low voice, looking desperalely
worried. They were Gabriel, the singing master, Mercler, the
seenery mumager, and Kémy, the secretary. They were anxious to
tell the managers about Christing Daaé’s disappearance, But the
managers were in their office, and they had given vrders that chey
were not tw be bothered. Rémy made several attempts to
petsuade them to open the doar of their office, and when he
frolly succeeded, Maonsieur Moncharmin only shouted ar him,
“Da you have a satety pin?™ When Rémy snswered that he did
not, Mosieur Moncharmin shouted at bim o go away. Then he
continued shouting for a safety pin until 4 boy brought him one,
which he took—then quickly shut the door in Bémy's face.

Rémy returped o tell Gabriel and Mercier that he wias unable
to communicate the message of Christine Daaéts disappearunce
t the managers. Mercier dedded to go and tell themn himself,

Rénry questioncd {rabriel abour the managers’ strange behavior
earlicr that evening, “Why won't they let anyone come near them
o1 wuch them?™

“What? Won't they? That is odd, Whar do you mean®™
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“I suw them walking backward! And when T ried o shake
Monsiear Wichard’s hand, Monsieur Moncharmin Jnieriedly
whispered, "Go away! (o away! Do nee touch the mwanager?” Am
I supposed to have a disease?™

“Tt's unbelievable!™

“Monsieur Bichard orned around, and althouph thens was ne
ane it front of him, he put lus hands together and lowered his
head, and left slowly, walking backwurd!”

“Toeally™

“aAnd Monsieur Moncharmin also lefi, walking backward!
They went like that to their office .. . backward! So, 1f they are
not ceazy, can you explain what this means®

“Maybe they were practicing 3 dance for the ballet)” suggested
 ;abriel, although he did not really believe this.

This made the secratary very angry. He whispered in Gabriel's
ear, “'I'here are things going on here and you and Metcier are
partly responsible”

“Wrhar do you mean?” asked Gabricl.

“{hrisine Tlaad is not the only one wheo disappeared tonight.
Maybe you can cxplain why Merenr took Maduame (nry away
jusl:-;a tirtle while ago when she appearcd in the hal?™

“12id Lt I didn’t sec that”

“You did, Gabriel, because you went with Mercer and
Madumme Giry to Mereier's office. No one hus seen Madarme Giry
since”

“120 vou think we've eaten her?™

“MNe, but you locked her in the office”

Suddenly, Mercier arrived, out of hreath, He told Cabriel and
Boemy ﬂ'mt. he had knocked on the managen’ ollice door amd
whcr; Moncharmin appeared, he rold him that Christine Daaé
had disappeared. Bur Mencharmin said,”And a good thing, too!”
Then, he pur 2 safety pin ineo Mercier's hand.

“Strunge! Very strange!” said Gabriel.
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Suddemdy, a vaice made all three of them turn around. T 2
sorry, gentemen. Could vou tell me where Christine 13asé is2”

The tace was s white, so full of pain, dhar they were scized
with pity. [t was Viscount Chagny.

After Christine’s disappearance, Raonl had rushed onto the
stage: and cailed her nume. He ran to her dressing room, calling
her name. Bireer tears buimed his eyes as he looked at the clorhes
which she was supposed to wear that night for their escape. Why
had she refused to leave earlier? Erik took her because he knew
abour their planned Qight. Raoul thought of the eyes in his
hedroom the night before. Why had he not killed him? He went
tor the mirror and pushed it tried to find an epening, but the glass
ubeyed no one excepr Erik. He retnembered something about a
gate opemng inte the Rue Soribe from the lake, and he run to
the street, ITe could find no way to the lake, so ke ran back
inside, where he saw threc men and asked ther if they knew
where Christine 1¥aaé was,

Ar that momment another nan appeared, and Mercier introduced
Viscount Chagny to um,

“This 15 the man vou should ask, Ler me introduce Momsieur
Mifreid, a pulice detective”

“l am delighted to meer you, Viscount Chagny. Would Virl
tiind coming with me? ... And where arc the manapers? . "

Mercier did not answer, but Rémy told lnm thae the managers
were locked in their office.

“Let’s go up 1o the office! s21d Mifroid. He headed for the
office with a growing crowd following behind him.

Merrier quickly pur a key in Gabriels hand and whispered,
“This is all going very badly You had hetter Tet Madame Ciry
out.”

And Crabriel moved away.

“Open in the name of the law!” Mifroid shauted outside the
managers’ locked door. The door opened and everyone rushed
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in, Faaoul was dhe Last to cocer, As he was following the others
inte the room he heard these words spoken in his ear: “Erik’s
SECTets COMCEtn ne one except himsel”

He turncd and saw a person with dark skin, green eyves, and
weanng 2 wool cap. 'The Persian! The man held one finger aver
his Lips. The wiscount was surprised and specchless. The Persian
disuppeared.

Chapter 8 Twenty Thousand Francs and a
Safety Pin

Ladier on the same day as the disappearance of Chriscne Daas,
the managers had.received their second note from the ghest
reminding thern thed s next monthly paymment was duc. It read:

3o qust as vou did lase month. 1t went very well, Pug the 20,000
franes io the envelope and haved it onur excellene Madame Cir.

And with the note was the usual envelope. They oniy had to
put the bills inside. This was done about a half an heur before the
mutain rose on the frst ace of Faust. Thew tle managers called
Madame: Giry. who was back m her job 25 box-kevper, to thew
oflice. They wanted to ask her some questions.

Snmething mysterious had happened w that first covelope
with 20,000 francs, and they did not want the same thing to
happett again this manth. Bul what had happened? Richard and
BMoncharmin had deaded to tell Gabriel and Mercier about
0.3 demand for an allowance, After pueting the meney inte an
eowvelope and watching Madatne Giry take it w the ghost’s box,
the two managers and Gubriel and Mercier hid themsclves and
watched. ‘They watched the envelope during the performance
atd afterward. Buc ac last they became tred of waiting and
walching, and they went to the ghoses box and opened :t. 'The
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20,000 francs were gone and had been replaced by rwenty bills
that were not real ones! Moncharmin had wanted to phone the
palice, but Richard had a plan. He told Moucharmin, 'Lets not
make ourselves look foolish. All of Paris would baugh at v QG
Las won the first game; we will win the scoomd”

He was thinking of the next month’ allowatice, And, we muost
not forget that these managers seill suspected the last owo
managers of plaving a joke on them. On the other hand,
Maoncharmin was sometimes troubled by doubts about Bichard
humself. They both had deubrs abonre Madame Giry,

When Madune Giry arrived in their office on that day of
Christine’s disappearance, she did oot have any idea that they
suspected her of stealiys Jast month'’s 20,000 france,

“Madame Giry do you know what 3 m thiz envelope?”
Richard asked.

YO course nat” she said.

e, laok.”

“Thouwsand frane bells!™ she cried.

“Yes, Madame Giry! And you knew i!”

“1, sir? [F7

“I am going o call the police and ask them to take you away!™

Mudame Giev was shocked, “Call the pohee?”

"You ace g thoef, Madume Giry!™

She shouted angrily, “T have never heard of such a thing! And
vou, Monsieur Richard, know better than T where the 20,000
francs went to!”

“If How showld Iknow?™

Moncharmin, looking dissatished, demanded that the good
lady explain herself)

Richard, who felt himself turning red onder Moncharmin's
eves, shouted angrily at Madame Giry, “Why do you say thar?
Answer mel”

“Becaosc the 20,000 ffancs wetit into your pocket!™
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“In R pockets™ asked Moncharmin, wlose hand stopped
Richards from hating Madame Giry.

“¥ou tell me e thers wele 200000 franes in the cnvelope
which I put into Monsienr Richard’s pocket, But I tell vou agai,
I knew nothing abour ir . . nor Mopzicur Richand either!”

“You s2e! [ knew nothing eitdee!”

Madame Giey concnued o explain. She had shpped the
epvelope that Moncharmin had given her inte Monsieur
Richards pucket an the cvening that the Secretary for Fine Arts
way visdng the Opera. The one that she rook to the ghosr’s box
was anocher envelope. just like v, which the phost had given her
and which she had hidden up her shceve,

Madame Sy then reached inre her sleeve and took out an
crvelope, like the one containire the 20,000 bancs, They
cxarmined it and discovered that it, tan, had meeney false bills, The
ghost had told her to slip his emvelope into Monsdeur Richard’s
pocket. She then showed them how this was dune, Moncharinin
was amazed,

“Ith a very goeod trick,” said Richand “Sa, he came and ok
the meney from my pocket. T didn'e notice—and I didnt know it
was there! It wonderful!™

“Oh, wonderful, no doubt!” Mancharmin agreed. "Bur you
foryger, Richard, that I provided 10,000 francs of the 20,000 and
nobody pnt anyrhing in sy pocket!”

*

(e the evening that Rénry saw the mamagers acting very
strangely, they had arvanged that Richuard would repeat the
movernents he had made on the evering that the 20,000 francs
had disappeared.

Mancharmin was watching Richurls pocket, where Madame
Ciary was poing to put 20,000 fanes. Richard sioad in the same
spot where he had stoad when he showed his admaration and
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respect for the Secrctary for Fime Arts. Monchatmin stood
behind him. Madame Giry rubbed against Monsieur Richard,
dipped the envelope inte his coat pocket, and disappearcd.
Mercier, tollowing Moncharmins instoctions, took the pood
lady to the scenery manager’s office and turned che key, malking it
impussible for her to cominunicate with her ghost.

Richard, during this time, was walking backoward, magining
he had the Secretary of Fine Arts in front of him, which caused
amazement to those who saw bim.

Moncharrpin did the saumne thing, 0 addition e pusting away
FéEmy and begging the manager of the Central Bank not o
eouch him. Monchanmm did not want Richard 1o come to him
when the 20,000 francs were gone and say, “Maybe it was the
mamager of the Central Bank _ . or Rémy”

The two managers returned ta cheir office in lus way, walking
backoward, with Moncharmin keeping a close watch behind
Richard, They locked themsebves in the ofhce and Moncharmin
put the key in his pocket.

“We remnained locked up ke this last Sme.” he satd, “undl you
left the Opeta to go home.”

“No one came i, [ snppose?™

“No one™

“Then I was robbed ot the way home from the Opera’

Yo, thats tmpossible. T gave you o ride home. The 20,000
franc: disappeared at your place: there'’s no doubt abour that™

“Mal sy servane!”

Maoncharmin raised his eves—he did not wish o discuss
details,

“Maonchataing 've had eneeply of dis!” said Richard, dred of
his parcner’s acricude.

"Pachard, £ had encugh of this!”

"o vou dare to suspect med”

Yeu, of a silly joke!™

5

“Otne does not joke with 20,000 Fancs”

“That's what | chink'"

“Liuk, you gave me a tide. You were the only onc o
dpproach me. T the 200000 franc: was noe lomger momy pocket,
there's a good chance of it being in vours!”

Moncharmmn jumped ap ac the suggestan. "(h!" he shoured.
A safery pin!”

“What do you want 3 safety pin for?”

“Lir fasten the 200000 francs to your coat! Thon yon will feel
the tund that pulls at your pocket and vou will see if it's mine!
Oh. 50 vou are suspecting me now, are vou? A safery pin!”

And that was the moment when Moncharmin opened the
daor and shouted down the passage, “A safery pin! Somchody
give Ime & safety pin '

This, of caurse, was when Rémy saw Moncharmin and the
hoy who hronght the safety pin, which Moncharmin ok before
shurting the deor in Rémys Bice. Then, Moncharemin knelt down
behind Richard. I1e mak the envelope from Richard’s pocket and
took ouc the bills with 2 trembling hand. He made sure they were
real, then pineed them back in the coat pocket wich great care.
Then he sat dowe beland Bichand’s coateils aind kept bas eyes on
them, while Richard, sitfing ar his writing table, did oot meve,

LR
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“The clack will soon strike twelve,” said Moncharmin. “Lase
tivne, we left at pawelse

“And it it 15 a ghost who puts the magic envelopes on the
table” =aid Richant, © .. who walks in Box Five ... who killed
Joseph Bugquet ... who unhooked the chandelier ... and who
robs us ... There 5 no one here except you and me. If the bills
disappear and veither you nar 1 are invelved, we will have to
bclieve in the ghose”

At that moment the clock began to srike cwelve dmwes. The
twa managers trembled, their forcheads were wel, When the
vlock stopped, they rose from ther chains.
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“Refore we go, do you mind if T look o vour pocker?™ askad
Moncharman.

i (T HR T

As Muoncharmin was feeling the pocker, Pachard asked,
el

“l can feel the pin”

“OF course, as you said, we can’t e robbed without porcmg
i’

But Moncharnun shouted, “F can feel the pin, bot T aant fecl
the bils!™

Richard polied off his coat. The two inanayers tuined the
packet inside out. The pocket was empty. Bue the pin remained in
the same place. Thene was no longer any doubt.

“The ghost,” whispered Moncharmin,

But Richard jumped on ms parmer. “No one cxcepr yon has
tontched mry pocket! Give me back my 20,000 francs!”

T swear 1 doa't have it

Thet somebody knocked ar the donr. Moncharmm opened it
automiatically. He hardly recognized Mercier, exchunged o few
words with him without knowden what be was saying md, with
411 DRConscious movernent, put the safery pin into the hands of
his puzzled scenery manager.

Chapter 9 Raoul Follows the Persian

Palice detective Mitroid entered the manapers” office and asked,
“Ts Christine Diaag here?™
“Why do vou ask if Christine 1aaé is here?” asked Ruchard.
“Because she has to be found.”
“Has she disappeared?”
“In the middle of the pertormance”
“This is exraordinan!?

“lan't itf And what 1 qete extraordinary s that vou ace
learning it from tne!”

“¥es,” said Richard, taking his head in his hands and saviog o
hiaascle, "It enotgh o make 3 man give up” He laoked up and
sabd 1o the detective, S0 she | _she disappeared in the middle of
the pertormanecet”

“Yes, carricd off at the moment she was asking the angels to
taks: her away. But T doshe she was careied off by an angel”

“And Tam sure she was!”

Evervhody looked ar the voung man, pale and aembling with
exciternent, who repeated, T am sure of it!”

“Sure of whust” asleed Mifroid.

“Christine 12348 wis carrled off by an angel, and | can tell you
his meome!™

The detectiwe asked averyome to leave except the managers
and the viscount. Then Paoul spoke. "Sar, the angel is called Trik.
He lives in the Croera and he is the Angel of Musde!”

bifroid mumed o the manapers and asked. “THo vou have an
Angel of Musc in the opera house, gentlemen®”

Richard and Moncharmin shoek their Zeads. withouwt even
speaking.

“These gentlemen know him as the Opera ghost, whio is the
same persom as tie Angel of Music, and his real namne s Brik”
eaplained Ranual.

“Gentemen, do you knowr the Opeta ghost?™

Richard stood and said, *[No, sin we do oot koow bim, bat ase
would like to. Because this ewemng he wobboed vy of 20,000
branes!™

Andd Richard tumed a cernible look oo Moncharmin and said,
"Oive e buck the 20,000 francs, or Ul tell the whale story”

Monehar mie said, O rell himn evceything ™

Mitroid leoked at Racul and at the two smanagers and
wondered if he wers 102 madbouse,
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O said Mifoid. “The singer first, then the 20,000 francs.
Monsieur Chiagmy, you believe that Christine 1Jaaé -was carried
off by an individual called Erik. Do you know this persen? Have
you seen himd”

g

Wherer™

“In a chorchyard.”

Foaoul tobd thenm shout Permos-Guirec, the Face of Death, the
violin. LThey all chought Lie was completehy mad. Jost as Facul
finished, the door opened and a man entered. 1t was a degective
with an impogant message for Mifroid, whao listeped o the
detective withomt taking his eves off Raoul.

“Monsieur,” said Mifroid to Baoul, “let’s talk about vou now.
Were you plantiing to carry off Mademuoiselle Christine Daaé
tonight:”

“Yes, s’

“After the performance?™

*Yes, sir”

“All your arrangements woere made?™

*¥es, sir”

Mifreid continued his questioning. He asked Raoul if lus
hrother were opposed to dhese arramyrements, and if Raoul knew
that his brothers carriage was no longer in front of the opera
house. “Monsicur Chagny, I must inform vou that your brother
has been smareer than vou!™” the detective said. “He 1 the one
wha carried off Christine 1Jaaé!™

0, impassible! Are you surs?” the poor young man asked.

“He has taken her in his carriage across Paris and out of

Facis .. Ty the Brossels road

“T shall cateh them!” cricd Raoul, and be rushed oat of the
office

“And bring her back to us'™ cricd the detective happily
“That' a erick worth ewo of the Angel of Musics!™ And, mrning

G0

12 zhe other men, Monsieur Mifredd told them that oo one was
more ariow: 0 find Christine than the younger Monsieur
Chagny. He smuled. “ ks is, peatlemen, the art of the palice. [t
consists of getring police work done by other people!™

But Monsicur Mifroid would not have heen guite so sarisfied
with himself if he had known that his assistant was stopped at dae
entrance to the fest passage, A il figure blocked Raoul way.
“Where arc you going so fast, Monsienr Chagny?”

"1t you!"he cried in a feverish vorce. " You, whe know Dok’
secrets and don’t wane me o spaak of them! Whe are yon?”

“You know who 1 am! 1 amn the Persian!™

The matt with the dark skin and green eves, wearingr 4 wool
cap. bent over Raaul. Ranel remembered that his brather had
once pointed to this mysterious person and told him thae he was
a Persiane who ved in ancapartteent inthe Faie de Ravoli, Apain,
the Persian asked Raoul where he was gning.

“Lo Christine 13asé’s assistance!™

“Then, ur, stay here, Christine Laaé 1z here

“With Erik?"

“With ik

“How do you lonow?”

1?

“T was at the performance and no one in the wotld excepe
Erik could sceal ramenne like thae!”

“Zan vou help me find her?”

"T can try totake wou ra her L, and mo him”

“How can T not believe you, when vou are che only onc to
believe me ... when yoo are the ondy one tiot to smile when
Erik’ name is mentioned?” said Raoul.

e must kot tentian that name here. Let’s say "he' and himg’
there will be less danger of atrracting his attention”

Do vou thik be s oear us?™

“Tt is quite possible, sir. if be is not at this maoment with his
Prisonct, in éfe house on the lake”
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“So you know that house woo?”

“Tfhe 18 not there, he may be here, mthis watl, in Jus oo, in
thiz ceiling! Come!”

Raoul followed the Persian up and down stars that he had
never seen before. They cuoe to a door which the Persian
opened with a key. 'There, they were met by a stranger with Jdark
skin and » cap hke the Persians. He gave 4 box to the Persun.
“Thank you, Trring, Rid anyone sec youd™

M, master””

“let ne oo see you go our”

The Persian’s servant quickly disappeared down the passageway,
The Persian opened the box and inside there were two guns,
“When Christine disappeared, I asked 1wy servanc to bring me
these guns. Here, 1ake this ane. Held if up, ready to shoot ac all
omwes. Hold it up in front of yoor face. We must be prepared fior
anyliing beeanse we shall be fighting the most terrible rival that
VoI can irnagioe”

“¥ou must hate Eok!”

“Mo, sir)” sard the Persian sadly, “L do nat hate oo f 1 had
ever hated himn, ke would have long wo stopped doing hanm

*Has he dome you harm?”

“i have torgiven him for the harm he has done to me™ The
Persian spoke with great pity m his voice, just as Chrstine had.
He touk Raeul to Christine’s dressing rootn and went straight to
the nuireor,

“Are we going out by the mimer?’ Raoul asked.

"5 you knew that Christine wept out by that micror™

" watched her. I was hidden behingd the cortain of the imner
room and T estched Lier disappear”

The Persian pressed his hands against the glass. He was trving to
merve jt. Baoul watched. The Persian explaiped the complicared
systern. hue he was having eouble making it work. “Maybe he cut
the cord so that we couldn™ curn it said the Persian.

g2

“Why would he? He doesnt koow dhat we are comndtg”’

“IIe suspects it, I'm sure. e knows that [ understand the
systemm.”

“Its not turmng! ... And Chrstine, sir, Chostne?™ Baoual
asked nervousty in o iembling voice.

"We will da all thac is humanly possible. But he commzoands
the walls, the doors, and the mp deors, In my country, he was
kowwt as 'the wap door lover!™

“But why do these walls obey only him? He did por hoild
them!"”

“Yis, sir, that is just what he didl” The Persan pulled
Fawoul close to him and said, “And now, look out! And be ready
ta shoo!™

They mised their guns oppesice the glass; it wened on its
center like the doot to 2 restaurane or store, As it turned, o
cartied Boaoul and the Persan with il and suddenly threw them
from the full, Blinding light intn the deepest darkness.

“linllos me and do all thar 1 doe,” sad che Persian, who took a
srrall light from his pocket and turned it on.

They were in 2 pasage made of wood and went oo their
ktiees unel they came to an opening. The Persian dropped down
frst, thetr Raoul. The faine light was just enough to Jee Raoul see
the shape of things around him. And he could not hold back a
small cry when e saw Uiree dead bodics.

Suddenly, thers were woices. One wowse was police detective
Mifroids and he was talkdng to the stage manager. 'They, too, saw
the Lodies. Faoul and the Persian kept back in the dark and
listened to the discussion, The bodies were those of Mauclair, the
chief mas wan in charge of lighting fas electricity was not yet used
mwich), and his two assistants, The stage manager thoughe chey
were dead, but Mifroid quickly realized thar they wer2 not but
were drugged and i a decp sleep, He wld the seage manager to
call a doctor, then e asked the managers, " What do you say to all
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this, gentlemen®™ 1'he managers stoed with surprised Fices at the
top of the stairs, und in fact had very littde to sy

The stage manager, who was still standing there, said, “ This is
not the firgt ime thac Mauchir has fillen asleep in the theater 1
remmernber finding him ence before’

"When was that?”

*I'he night when Carlotti—you kiow, sir—gave her famous
FCp-ack ™™

"Reeally? asked Mitroid, staring hard at the stage manager.

Raoul and the Perstan watched as the bodies were taken away,
then the Persian took Raoul down o the tund cellar. Tt was a
long way up and down stairs and through mareow passages, amd
they heard muny strange and frightening noises along the way.
When rhey came to the spot whete Joseph Buguet had been
found bauging, the Persian pressed against the wall and a stons
fell, leaving a hole throngh which the two men passed.

“Take off your shoes. We shall et them when we lexve” the
Iexsian said. He went a lictle farther on Tds konees, then said, T am
going o hang by my hands from the edge of the stone and let
aryself deop dete ki howsz. You must do exactdy the same, Do not
he afraid. T will catch pou in iy arms.”

They dropped dewn as the Persian swad, and stood still,
Listening. 'Lhe darkness was thick around rhem; the silence was
heivy and terrible. The Persian held ap his light and loaked for
the hole through whicl they Lad dropped, but it had closed
up. Then he noticed snomeathing like a cord on the ground, aod
he bent down to pick it up. He examined it for a moment,
thee, in koo Urew i away, b was a Purgab rope—umayhe the
rme that had been nsed arcund Bogquers neck. 'The Prersian
knew hoew skillful BErik was with this rope. He had seen 1t
lefore,

Anxiowsly, he looked around, then with deep emotion he
whispered, W have dropped inco the torture room!™

frd

Chapter 10 The Persian’s Story

VWhen [ began searching [or the truth about this extraordinay
tragedy involving Count Chagny, his brother the viscount, and
Christine Daaé, T had the pood fortune to meet Detective Faure.
tie told me 7)1 ahout the Persian, who sill lived m Rue de
Rivoli, and [ went ta wisit him. ITe gave mc some documenrs.
including, this report of cvents thar happened in the torture
mom. The words here are exactly as he wiote thenn

Tt was the first tme that 1 had entered the house on the lake. |
had nficn begeged “the trap door kover” to open ity miystericus
doors to me. He alwuys refused. After he started living in the
Opera, T tried 1o wateh and learn as he wotked the door in the
wall on the lake, hut it was too dark o see. One day, when [
thought 1 was alone, L tuok the boat cut on the lake toward the
part of the wall where T had scen Erik disappear.

In the lakr 1 heard <ingme, beanaful sinping, beside me in the
water. The lake was perfectly calm and I kuew that it had to bea
new invention nf Lrik’. That this imvention was so perfect that I
leaned out of the haat, charmed by the woice, and suddenly two
armns came out af the water and seized me around the neck,
drapging me down with great force, T cried out, Erik knew it was
me, and instead of drowmng me as he had planned, he swam
with me and lad me on the shore. '

He told nmie T was foolish and that he did not want me, or
anybody, there. And be asked me, "Thd you save my life only Lo
1nake il unhearable for me?”

T didn't answer, 1 wanted to know hew he had managed the
trick of the singing lake, and he agreed o satisfy m¥ curiosiky,
T'here is nothing he loves more, after surprising peaple, thart ta
prove how mysteriously his mind works. [ knew this because [
had known him in Persia. 1 also knew that he was a monosker.
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He shewed mae 2 nsefid nick Gor breathing, and siggng, under
water. “It's a trick that nearly killed me!™ I said. “And you know
what you promiscd me, Enk® No mote murders'™

i - - -
Have I really committed murderss™ be asked m 2 triendly
VOICE,

“Iwve you forgutten? But that is the pase .. and wou are -

responsible to me for the present becanse, ¥ I had wished, you
would have died long age. R enwemnber that, Frik. I saved your life!™

Wkhen I asked him abour che chandelier, he laughed 2 most
tertible langh and said, “The chandelier was old and needed
repalrs, my dear dasoge!* It just fell Now go and dry voursalf,
And never get intu my hoat again. And do not try to get into my
house!” Then he disuppeared in the datktiess of the Inke.

Fver since [ discovered that Erik was living in the {pery, [
feared for everyone. When people said, “Its e ghost'™, 1
theught, “T would not be surprised if it werne Erik” T knew what
this devil could de. His terrible ugliness put him oumide the rest
of huttsnily. It scemed to me thae for thae reason be no longer
biheoved that he bad any duty toward the buman race.

When he rald e that he was loved for himself, T hid in the
room next to Chnstine Tlaaés dressing room and listened o his
singing. T could not understand how she coull love such 3
lerribly ugly person unnl I learned that she had not vt seen him!
At this time [ alse discovercd the trick chat made the wall with
the mirror swing around, and bhow the walls were built of hollow
bricks so that his voice easily carded into her room. And 1
discovered the trap door that allowed Lim w go smaighr to the
rellars helow,

COne day, when he caughe me spying on him, ke said, “1f
1y secrets stop being ny secrets, it will be a bad day for many
peaplal™

* darcga: the Persian ward fir chicf of police.

0

When I accused him of carrving off Christine Daaé and
keeping her locked up in his house, he told me that he could
preve to me thar she loved him. He said he would et her go, aud
1 would sce her return ga him because she loved him and wanted
ra returty. He told me that it would end in a marriage.

I suid that if | saw her de this, I would no langer hother him
oz Dollow ki around, o he told me tw watch thar oighr when
they went ta the masked partv. And, to my surprisc, thiongs
happened s he said they would. She left the hause on the lake
and returned to it several thnes.

1 was very interested in this relationship wath Christine Daae. |
weas worried by the rerrible thought of what Erik would do if he
founid that lic was nor Joved for himself, as he imagined. Soon I
learned the rruth about the monster’s love affair.

He filled Christine’s mind, but the girls heart belonged to
Viscount Chagny. While they played araund on the upper tloors
of the Opera to avoid the monster, they did not suspect that [ was
watching them. | was prepared to do anything—to kil the
muonster, if neccssary,

I thought that the monster would be drven away from his
house by jealousy, and this would allow me to coter i It was
nmportant that T knew what was insude, One day, tired of waiting
fiur an oppormnity, | discovered the stonc in the wall thar could
he taken out and pue back. I moved the stone and heard that
devil, Frik, working on his piece of music—his Den fras

Trmphanr. | kneve thac this was the wark of s life.

On the day chat Christice Daaé disappearcd during ber
pertormanee, T had read about her possible nmarriage ro Viscouti
Chagry and T feared what might happen. 5o [ was certain that she
had been taken away by Erik, prince of magicians. T wanted ro tell
everyone to leave the Opera because [ was afraid of whar nught
happen next. But [ stopped mysell, That was when 7 decided that
T must go to his house, where he had certainly taker her [
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decided to take that paor litfle desperate viscount, and | sent my
setvant for my guns. The viscount trusted me compleeely, but iy
fear was great thar Erik was near and preparing the Punjab rope.

Ne one knows better than Exik how to throw the Punjab
rope. He used to umnse the Persan pringess in her palace,
Murenderan, with his sope-throwing tricks. He had lived in
India, where he learned ro throw a rope like a cowboy and could
use it to kill men. This is why I told cthe viscount w hold his gun
up in front of his face. 1 knew that it would be very difficult tor
Frik ro throw his rope around aor nécks if our arms were held
up in front of them.

When the viscount and I arrived at last in the third cellar, [
moved the stone and we jumped into the house which Frik had
buile himself in the walls of the Opera, Erik had worked under
Philippe Garnier, the architect of the Opera, after returning to
France. He continucd to work by himsclf when the building of
the Opera was stopped during the wat,

I koew whar thizs hause was probably like becanse T had secn
what he had doune in Mazenderan, With his trap doors, the
monster was responsible for endless tmpedies of all kinds. He
made unbelievable inventons, but the fmost carious and terrble
was the torture room. TF the princess wanted someone killed, she
sent them ro Eriks rorture room.

The room Monsieur Chagny and I dropped inta was cxactly
the same as Frik’s previous torture room. At our feet was the
Punjab rope which T had been worrying about all evening, I
suspected that ir was this rope dhat killed Joseph Buquct, probably
when he found Frik moving the stwone in the third cellar, Lrik
probably dragged Bequers body o where 1t was found. and
threw the rope down into the torture room oo hide it.

[ am not a coward, but when { found it ... I felt sick,
Mansiewr Chagny neticed and asked me what was wrong, [ put

my finger to iy hips to warn him to be silent,

&4

The toom was full of mirrors and we could hear Erik’s voiee
as e spoke to Chnstine Daue, T wae certain thar Frik did noe
know of our presence because if he had, the torures would Jave
begun at ance, [ feared that Viscoumt Chagny, who wanted to
rush through the walls t Christine, might not be able to conwrol
himself.

We heard Bk say to her.” Don juan frisaplant is finished, and
now 1 want to live like cvervbody else. T want to have 2 wile like
cvervbody else. [ have invented a mask chat makes me laok like
anvbody clse, People will nat even ourn around in the streets. You
will he the happiest of women. You are crying! You are afraid of
me! But T arn not eally cruel, Love me and you will see! T you
loved me, T would be very gentle, and you could do anything
witl mwe that vou pleased”

We heard desperate cries, which we soan realized were tam
Lrik. Christine seemed oo be standing domb with harror,
without the smongth to ory oun, whike the monseer was on his
knees in tront of her,

"o don't love me!™ he cried theee fimes.

Then, strangely, chere was the sound of an electric bell. Frik
wot up and walked across the room. We hearnd 2 door close.
Christine was now alone, behind the walll The viscount called to
her, "Christine! Christine!™

Fler (iint voice reached us, “T am dreaming!™ she said.

Fanul old her that we were there to sive her, She said i
Erik had genme mad with love e would lll evervhody
sneluding Lirmself if she did not agree to become has wife. He had
rold her that iF her answet was 1o, evervbody would be dead and
puried. He had mven her until eleven o’clock the next evering
tor think aboul i1, Slte had to-choose the music— wedding music

or Funeral nnsic,

T asked her if she knew where Erik had gone. She thought he
had left the house.
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#Can you open the doer? T asked her, bevause we could not
see 1 door berween the torture mom and the zirting moom she
was in. But she was tied to her char and could not mewve. Frik
had ted lrer up after she had cried 1o kil herself: she had banged
her head against the flaor several dmes. T asked her where the key
wis ang che told me it wus in a leather bag that Erik called the
bag of life and death, Suddenly, shie told us that he was coming,

“Ask him to ante vou. Tell him it huores. Feemember, he loves
vou, Clhristine.”

And when Erik eneered, she begped him to untie her, which
he did. He sar dowmn and began ta play some slow, sad music and
hiz voice pourcd out the funcral song, Suddenly, he stopped and
the voice, tolally chunged. demanded angrily, “Whar have you
done with iy bag? You wanted me to untic vou so that voun
could take nwy bag!™ She had smunaged to take it while he was
playing. As be took the bag hack from her, Christine made a crv
of pain, Ieanng this, Faoul could not hold back his anger, or his
o hitter ery,

“What’s that? 13id you hear something, Christine?” said the
terrible creature.

“No. T hesrd nothing,” replied the poor gl

“T thonght T heard 3 cry”

A cry! Are you going mad, Frik? T cried out becavse voun
hurt me! I heard nothing™

"I dar't dke the way vou said that! Youre cembling. You're
hying! "L'here was a cryl There is someone in the torture room! [
understand now!”

“Thete 15 v ope there, Lok!™

“The maty $ou Want Lo marry, maybe!”

“I don't want w marry anybods! Wou koo [ dose!™

T owon't take long to boed out. I there is someone in chere,
you will see a window light up near the celling. If we puil back
the black curtain and pue our the lighe in here .. "

Fik

And that was when it bega—the thing [ feared maost, We
aeere suddenly flooded witl light.

"The angry voice shoured, "1 told you there was somecne! DO.
vo see the window now? The lighted windorw, right up thers?”
e devil told Christine to o up the steps and look through the
window, down into the torture wom. I do not know if the
viscowt heard her wembling voice bueause his full agtention was
caken by the anbelievabls world he found himselfin. [ had scun
-his sight too ofien, through the litle window n the palace in
Mazenderan,

I heard Christine ask,“ Wiy do vou call that room the torrure
rovnn?

“WWhat did vou see through the window?™

T sawe a frorest” shie answered. “Bul there was ne one there—--
only e, _

':Yﬂu see? [1's all 2 joke! Lut Tam very tived of it Tam tred of
having a forest and a torture tOOM In 11¥ hose, 1 iwant, o live:
like other people. [ wane i nice, quiet aparrment wilh nrﬂ?n-%ar}-'
dears and windows and a wife inside it! My dear lirile Christine!
Are you listening to me: 'Lell me you love me! Mo, you den't
Love e, but you willl You will ger used to me. You would _h;wc
lots of fun with me, T am the greatest ventriloguist thar ever livesd.
1 am the frst ventrloguist in the wurld! You'rs langhing ...
Maybe vou den’t believe me? Listen”

"j:'ht :;J.evi], whio really was the first ventriloguist in the world,
was oy orying fo take the girl's attention away from the tm'tgn:
O, I-iut it was a stupid plan because she theught of nothing

caepr Ul .

“ [t gt the lighe in the fitle window, Brik!’ she said.

She Yenow that this Fght inust mean something terrible. Omne
thing that calmed her ferars a litle was the sight of us in chat light,
alive and well, Bur she wanted the light put out.



Chapter 11 The Scorpion or the Grasshopper

“Listen, dear. My mouth is closed. but you can hear my voice,”
said the venriloguist. “Sec the two boses on the shelf? My voice
is in che lictle box on the right. What 1 ie saping? Shall I rum the
seorpion? And now, whar is 0 saving in the Litde box on the lefi?
Shatl 1 fur the grasshopper? Here it 1 in the little bag, What 3s it
saying? 1 am (ke Litle bag of tfe and death! And now it in
Carlatta’s throat! Co-ack! It’s on a chair in the ghost’s box and it is
saving, Madame Carlita & singing tenight to bring the chandeficy
doent! Where js Frik’s voice now? Listen, Chiristine, my dear. Te's
behind the door of the torture room. [ts me in the totture room!
Ared what am I saying? Lask out {f you havr o nose, i real wose, and
Frave come [o look aroumd the torture room!™

Oh, the ventriloquist’s terrible voice! It was everywhere,
svervwhere! Tt ran around s, between us! Frik was there,
speaking to us! We jumped across the raom o catel: him, but his
volke jumped back, behind the wallt Soon we heard nothing
tore because this is whae happened:

“Erik! Erik!"” said Christing’s woice, “Stop! I'm tired of this,
[sn't it very hot heres”

*Oh, ves” replied Erik's voice. “The heat is unbearable”

"Bt whiat does thus mean? The wall s neally getting hot! The
wall iz burning!™

T tell you, Christne, It is the forest next door, Didn't you
sue it was an African forest?”

And the devil linghed so loudly and terribly that we coutd no
longer hear Christine’s cries. Viscount Chagny shouted  and
banged against the walls like a madman. I could not stop him.
And then there was the sound of a bady falling on ¢he fdoor and
being dragged along, A door banged und then nothing. Nothing
mor: arownd us cxcepe the burning silence of o tropical forest.

Our prison had six waulls completely covered in mitrors.

|
Lt

Thease vonms are tot ursial today, buk the iavention belungs to
Erik, who buile the fiest room of this kind unider nry eyes ac that
die in Mazenderan o Persia. Thue the Perdun princess grew
dred of this, 50 Rrik changed bis imvention inre a tormume 1oot.
He put an iron ceee with painted leaves 1 one coroer. Tac
attacks of the person in the torture room coald not destroy it
There was only thes ree and nothine clse, cxoept the clectric
heating systemy, which could he coneolled, The mirrors muldplicd
the tee so that it gave che improssion of 2 gopica forest under 2
burmipy s,

The wiscount was i a rereible stace of worry. He rubbed his
tarchead with his hands, hoping to drive sway a bud dreamn, He
opened and shut his eyes, but the forest did mot disappear,

[ noticed that the mirrors were matked and seratched, which
proved o me that this torture mom had alresdy served a
purpose. Yes, someoe driven crazy m this room had kicked
those mirrors, And the branch of the tree wheree he had pur an
end o his vwn zoffering was areanged a0 that, before dyving, he
hiad seen a thousand men suffering wich Inm. Yes, Joseph Buguet
had undoubtedly experienced al® this! Were we o die as e had
done? 1 did aot thitk oo T kaesw we had a fewr bours, and T eonid
use my knowledge of Erik’s “rricks” to try to find a way ouot.

We had dropped row far down to go back e way we cane,
The only possible way out was thoough the doar thac dad to the
room where Erk had kept Christine, Although this door could
be seen by Christine. it was impossible to see from aeide e
torture room. We had to ty to open it wathane even knawing
where it was,

I had to calm the viscount. who was alrsady walking abueul
like 1 man going mad. His worry ter Chrisane. the tagie forest,
and the burning heat were having vheir tended effect on Lis
brain, 1 made hirn roweh che mirrors and che iron oree, amd |
cxplained to him whar was happening. | prodused w bmd e
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doar, but he had o ot me search. T told him that he must not
shout and walk up and down, so ke lay on the floor, as one daoes
in a forest.

I pliced mv fngers on the nucon, huntng for e weak
point. I iried not to lose a mimate, 26 T was feeling more and more
faint trom the heat.

After half an heur, the viscount interrupted my search, “Dia
o think you will find it saon? IF it tales much loager, we will
be roasted alive!™

[ was sorry to hear him talk like this, [ had hoped thac his
sense of reason would kst some time longer against the tarture.
Then, he told me rhat it was 2 combort to know that if we
could not gee out and save Christing, at wease we woulild be dead
hefare her!

I continued my scarch, but I was having no luck. We were
borh vary thirscy, Fear was growing in out hearts—of the wild
animals in the forest. Briks ericks included the sounds of lions
and other dangerons animals, bt this knowledge was licte
comtort. After a while, T was so tired that 1 threw nvvself down
beside the viscount. [ knew that, by now, Erik ktiew who was in
the rorrure poom. I called hio: “Frik! Erik!”

There was no answer. We were beghming o die of heat,
hanger, and thirst. The viscount sat up and pointed to 4 spat,
“Water!” he shouted. 1 knew this trick, and did noe want to hope.
IIa man hoped fise watet, he would pull himseld desperaccly . to
the mirror. Then there wus only ane thing for him to do—ta
hzng bimsclf on the iron wee.

[ tried to stop the viscount, but he no longer believed whar I
said, He dragged himself forward, saying, “Warer! Water!"

His mouth was open and he thought he was drinking. And
my mwouth was open., toa. W ot only saw the warer, we lieard it

Finallv—and this was the most pitides torture of all—we
heard the rain and it was por mining. Anather trick of Erik,

74

which he nunaged by deopping small stones mn 1 box he hag
made for this purpose. When we reached the mimor, with our
tongues out, Viscount Chagny put his tongue ariust the glass.
and T paat sy tongue against the slass,

1t was baening hot

We molled on the floor in terrible hopelesstiess. Viscount
Chagny put has pun to Jos head, and I stared at the Punjab rope at
the foot of the iron tree. Suddenly, [ saw something and |
jumped, which delayed the viscount’s atrempt 1o shoot himse] £ T
tack his urm. Aed then [ took the gun from hint . .. and dragged
wself oo whal [ lad seen.

Mear the Punjab rape there was a black nail. and 1 recopmized
1ts use, I pushed the nail and a trap door opened. Cool air came
up o us tfromy the Black hole below. [ put toy arm in angd fele
stairs . .. stadrs leading ta a cellar,

We went down and found ourselves in Erik’s cellar, whete we
hoped to find wine. Erik likes fine wines, But instead we found
samething terrible! NMow [ understood what thar devil meant
when he said to Christine, “Yes or ool If vour answer is no.
sveryhody witl be dead and beariedt”

He had chosen his dme well-—eleven o'clock ar nighe, We
were all poing to die—Cleisune, the wviscount, me, the
performers, and the audience—in a terrible explosion in the
middle of a perfarmance in the Paris Opera it Christine 1aaé
said no! 'The cellar was full of poveder thatl would explodi  she
refused to marry Frik!

Christine did not knewer that the lives of so many people
depended an her acceprance or refusal. Andd how could she not
refusc? Bur what time was it? We had ne 1dea how noch tne
we had spent in the torture room, and i was toa datk o see our
witches, We climbed back up the scairs and into che torbaee
roomy, which was now as dark as the cellar & called o
Viscount Chagny called to Christins and 1 to Erik. But thers was
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no answer. Viscount Chagny broke the glass of his warch and fele
the two hands. Judeing by e space between the hands, he
thought it nught be just eleven o'dock! But which cleven
o'clack—morming or myght? And which day?

Snddenly, T beard footsteps in the next room. Someone
knocked lLightly on the wall. Christine woice said, “Raoul®
Bacul'™

We were now all talking at once, an the twa sides of the wall.
Afraid thar he might be dead, Christine cried when she heard
Poaoul’s voice.

“What is the tdme now? Raoul ashed her. “Quickiy,
Christine!™

“It%s five minures to aleven,” she ceplicd. " He has given me fve
ounutes o decide. Before he went oot he said, ‘Here is the key
that opens che bttle boxes in the sitling mom. In one of the
boxes, you will find a scorpion, tn the other, 3 grasshopper, TE vou
tursy the scorpion awound, that will mean vowr answer 15 ves. The
grasshoppet will mean ne’ And be laughed like a drank dewil, T
begged him w give me rhe key o the tortere toom. | sad 1
would marry him if he gave it to me, He oghed again and left
e, His Last wornds were, The grasshopper! A prasshopper does
not only wwen, it jumps! It jumps! And i jomps vory high'™

| understoed. If the grasshopper ®ere turned, it would jump—
it conrrolled an electricity supply thar would cause the explosion.

Viscount Chagny gquickly explaned che sisuarion tn Christine
in g few hurried words, and he told her to num the scorpion
immediarcly, But, as she wenr wo tollow Lis instruction, I shouted,
“Ten't touch it!” The ide: had come to me—T knew iny Erik
that maybe Lie had Jeceived the girtl once more. Maybe it was the
scarpion that would blow everyrhing up, Why wasn't he there?
The five minutes hat passed and he was not back. Ttad he found
sheller [or himsell as he waited for che explosion? Why had he
nak remrned?

6

“Tlere he comes!™ oried Christine. 1 can hear him?”

We heard him enter the siting room. He walked toward
Christine, but did not soeak.

“Erik! It is I! Do you koow me?™ | shouated.

With extrantdinay calmness, he answered, "So you are not
dead in chercr Well, keep quiet”

i wied to speak, but he smd coldly, “MNot a word, devoga, or 1
will blow everything up” Then he said to Christine, “If you turn
the grasshopper, mademaiselle, we will all be Bleswn up. There 13
encugh pewder in the cellar ro Blow up o« whole district of Paris,
If you ture the scorpion, the powder will be drowned in water.
I celebrare our wedding, vou will mive a lot of people a great
present—their lives. With your own hands, you will turn the
scorpion .. _and happily, happily, we will be married! Youn havse
two minutes. then I will tarn the grasshopper. Aod L tell vou, the
grasshopper fusps very high!”

“Erik, do vou sweat to me that the scorpion is the ons 1w
turn?’ che cried.

“VYes, the scorpion ... he saild, moving his fingers slowly
toveard the grasshopper in asuccessful ateempt to frighten her

“Erik! 1 have mrned the scorpion!™

Oh. the second we passed thiongh, waiting 1o find curselves in
little pisces in the muddie of the rerrible ruins, Suddenly, we
heard 2 noise below us. It was the sound of warer. All of our
thirst, which had disuppeared when the terror cine, now
returned with the somnd af the water, The viscount and [ went
down w the cellar and drank. The watse rose and we went back
vp to the totture mom, where the water was encering and
forming a Litte Lake. Tt continued ta rise. We called out to Erik
and Christine, hut there was no answer, The water was moving
aronnd and around and we were golng with it Werne we guing
drosvn here i the tortyre mom?

“Enk! Erikl™ T shouted.®] saved your Life! Remember! You wore
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going o die! If it weren't for me, you would be dead now! Egk!™
There was no reply. Then I last consciousness.

Chapter 12 Erik-Thantom, Monster, or Man?

Ihat wae the end of the Penizan® story as he wrote jt.

Viscount Chagny and Ul Persian were saved by Christine
Daae. I heard the rest of the story frome the lps of the dams
himself, When I went to see him, he was 2 very sik, ald tman and
it was very difficult o persuade him ta relive the magedy for me,

It seems thar when he opened fns cyes, the dargs found
hirself lying on a bed. Christine brought him a driuk, bul she
did ret say a word. Etik was looking ac lum.

“Are you betrer, daraga?™ Erik asked him. He pointed to the
viscount and said, “He weoke up long before we knew if you were
siill alive, He is quite well, He is asleep, We paust not wake hit,
You are saved. both of vou. And soon I will take you up to the
surface of the carth, to please my wife” Then, he teft the room.

Christine sat W a2 corner, reading a bunk, 'Lhe Persian whed o
speak to her, but she Jdid not look wp. Fvenrually, the Tersian fell
asleep and did nor wake again unel he was in bis own room, with
his faithfil Darius at his bedside, Darins told him that o stranger
hiedd 1eft him on his doorstep the night befors,

As soon as he was well cnough, the Persian sent a message o
Couot Philippe's house asking about che viscount’s health, 'Fhe
anywer was that the young man had not been seen and that
Count Philippe was dead, The count’s body was found naxt to
the Cipera lake, on the Tuc Scribe side. The Persian had no
doubt cancerning the crime or the criminal. He was sure dhac
the count had gone looking for his brother, had found che lake,
and had been pulled 1. The Persian informed the police. The
detcctive, Monsiewr Faure, thought he was mad.

T

2esperate, the Persian sal down and wrore the story chat you
have just tead. IFe chought thar the newspapers nught be
interested in it. When he had jusc written e last line, Darius
apnounced that a visitor, who refused v give his name or shoar
hiz face, wanted to see the daroge. The Persian knew who this
st be and mld Darius to let nim in.

The Persian rose as Erik entered. Bk locked weak and Jeaned
against the wall,

“Murdetrer of Count Philippe, what have you done with his
brother and Christine 13aaé?"

Erik, who could hardly speak, told the Tersian thir Count
Philippe’s death was an aceident—that he had fallen inte the lake.
And that now, he, 100, was dying.

“OFf love, darega ... [ am dying of love. And T still love her. IF
you knew how beavnful she was when she let me kiss her .
alive ... It was the first time I ever kissed a woman ... I kissed
her alive and she looked so beantifull”

“Ts she alive now?:" the Perstan asked angrily

“Yes, ves, she is alive. She saved your Bfe, darogt, How she
begraed me o save her little friend! She promised to be my wite
i T wowld save hint, and she luoked so beautiful. That was when |
knew she would be my lving wife. Uniil then, 1 had shaays seen
my dead wife in ber eyes. bt was the fimst ime I saw my living
wifi there, She wiould not Kl herself, IIalf o minute later, the
water was back in the luke. [ carried you oot af the house and left
you at your door”

“What 1d vou do with Viscount Chugny#’ the Persian asked.

“I wanted to keep him, bur nol w1 the hause. 50,1 ged him up
and left him in the cmptiest parc of the Opera, below the Afih
cellar, where 1o one ever comcs, and where no one ever hears
you. Then I went back to Christine, She was waiting for me”

Erik roze, but be trembled like a leal He contunued, " es, she
was waiting for me. And when [ came forward, she did not run
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away ... and 1 kissed her on the forchead! Oh, how good it is ta
kiss somebody on the forchead! My inother, darogd, 1oy paor,
unhappry morher never ... let me kiss her .., She used to run
away ... and throw me my meask! There has never been anry other
woinan | ever, ever! My happiness was so great, T eried. [ fell ae
her teet, crying ... and I Kissed her feet ... her Little feet ..
crving ., You'te crying, too, deroga!™

The Persian conld not Told back hos tears as he looked at chat
nusked man, who was holding his heart and crying with pain
and love al the samne Hme.

"Her tears t2ll on my forchead and they mixed with my
tears .. Listen, dargd, listen t0 what I did! . I tare off my mask
and she did not ron asay! |, And she did not dic! ... %% cried
together! T huve tasted all dhe happiness the world can offer]
While T was at her [eet I heard her say, ‘Poor, unhappy Erik!'. ..
And she fook wy kend! ... I held in my hand a ring, a plain gold
ring winch I had given her . .. and she had lost ... and which |
foumd again ... I slipped it into her litde hand and said, “There!
lake id Take it for vou ... and kim' It will be my wedding
present from your poor, ushappy Trik! I know vou leve the boy"
... 5he asked me what [ meant ... T tald her she could marry the
young man ... because she had cried wich me and mixed her
tears with mine! T freed the young man ... He and Chrisoine
kissed in front of moc ... I made Christine swear to come back,
one night, when [ was dead, crossing the lake from the Rue
Scribe side, and o bury me with the gold ring, which she wouid
wear untl that moment ... T told her where she would find my
body and what to do with it ... Then Clistine kissed e, for
the first cime, hersell. bere, on che forchead, and rhey wenr off
together . . Daroga, i Christine keeps her promise, she will come
back soon!™

Before he left, Frik rold the daregs chat when he felt chae his
end was vory near, he would send him all of Christine [Daad’s
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papers. 'Lhis was his way of thanking the dorage tor the kindness
the Pemsian Lal opee shown lan, These papers had besn wiillen
I Chrisrine for Raoul, hut she had lefr them widh Erik with a
tew other snxall things. Erik said chat the cwo bud gone, intending
to be married. Ele asked the Persian o inform the young couple
of his death when he received Clhrisrine® papers, and ta advertise
1t in the Fpogue.

1arins helped Erik down to the street. A taxi was waiting for
nim. The Persan, who was at the window, heard Erik say, “Go o
thie Opea”™

And the taxi drove off inte the naghe,

The Persian had seen the poor, unfortunate Brik for the lase
time. Three weeks later, a notice in the Epogue read: “Erik is Jead”

*

It is now impossible to deny that the Phantom of the Opera did
exist. There is sn much proof of his cxistence that we can follow
Erik: actions logically througls the whale tragedy of the
{hagnys.

The case greatly excited the capital, and Christine 1Xaaé was
represented as z poor gl caught between two hrothers. Nubody
suspected  what really happened; acbody understood  rhar
Christing and Raoul had disappearcd in order o enjoy a
happiness which they did not want o make public after the
mystericus death of Count Philippe. They wont to Scandinavin—
and maybe Madume Valérius, whe disappeared at the same time,
joaned them thers,

The newspapers continued to ey to understand the mystery
long after the unintelligent detcctive Faure gave up. Ooly the
Pursian knew the whole truth and held the main proots which he
teceived from Lrik just before his death. | had the job of
completing those proofs, and the darsga directed ny inquitics. be
told e where to gather information, wha to speak to.
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When T asked the Persion to tell me how Erik managed o
lake e money fom Richardys pocket i spile of the sately pin,
he reminded me chat Frik was called “the rap doar lover” He
told me tu look in the managers’ office, which | laccr did, and
there lay the wrap door under the mapagers desk.

The Persian's scory, Christine [aaés papers, and the statemenes
macle to me by people who worked under Richord  aned
Monchartmun all helped me to make some importane discoveries.
I have nor been able o find the house on the luke because Crik
blacked all the entrances. Chy the other hand, I discoverad secret
passages, and the trap door that was wed by the Persian and
Raoul Lo eneler the cellars.

According to the Persian, Erik was bont i France it a small
rown ncar WMouen. He was baen with a terrible fice—no nose,
yellow eyes—that he had to hide. He ran away and joined a fair,
where he was shown to the public as the “the living desd?”” He
crossed all of Burope. from fair to fair, and completed his
education as an artiet and magician with these traveling shows.
He sang beautifully, practiced wentrilaquism, and performed
unbelievable rricks, When the Princess of Muzendetan in Persia
heard about him, she instructed the daroga to find him and bring
him o her.

His tricks were nsed for pobbacal murders and the king Lked
hing, Frix had very orgrmal ideas wboul architeciure and he Luile
a palace full of map doors and secret passages. The building was
che wotk of o genms. The kbng did not wane anvone clse to have
a palace like this, so he ordered that Erik and all che men who
worked for him be put to death. The darga was told o do the
killing. Efik had once helped hime, and the darga repaid him by
providing him with an escape, A body was Luter foutd, and
because the king believed this tm be Edk’, he did noc have the
darope murdered. Buat the darega was sent out of Persia, and he
went ta Paris.
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Erik escaped o Constantinopls, where he agan buill o grem
palace for the king there. Of course, he Lad w leave fon the same
reason he Jeft Persia; he knew too much. He went to Parls, where
he worked an building houses, and en the Opers, He deeamed of
creating a place unknown to the rest of the sarth, where he could
hide from men’ eyes for all tme.

The reader knows and guesses the rese. Powr, unhappy Lrik!
Shoutd we pity him? $hould we carse him? T saw his skeleton the
ather day, when tliev took it from the spot where Chistine had
Itz buried. And what will ey do with that skeleron? The best
place for the skeleton of the Opera ghost is in the National
Schoal of Music. It is no ordinary skeleton.



ACTIVITIES
Chaptera 1-3
Befars you read
1 D you believe in ghosts? Why {not)?

2

3

Read the Introduction on page v. Do you like homgr stornes? Do
you think vou will like this ane? Why (not)?

Look up affowance, genivs, and phaniom In your digtionary, They
are all used in tha story. Which is a wond for

a aghost?

b money?

¢ avary intelligent parson?

Choose the correct answar to these questions, Look up tha words
in faffes in your dictanary.

a Do you llaten to singers at the baifetor at the opera?

b At the theater, do you buy ticksts [rom the ceflar or the box
oiticeT

Do peopke 5it i a box o in a memerandunt at the thealer?

l= an angef earthly or giving?

Which are suparstitious—sheleions or people?

Which person has & higher sociaf position, & @ount or a
viscouni?

If yiou find 8 skuff in wour bed, do you fremive or laugh?

If a Frenchman loses two million francs, is it a idemph or a
dizaster?

I T = T )

= @

Aflar pou raad

5

Where do thess events happen?

a .Joseph Buquet iz found hanging.

b Gabriel, the singing master, sees the ghost behind the Perslan.

e Little Giry's mother hears the ghost,

d Racul hgars a man’'s voice saying, “Christine, you must love
ma!”

e Monsleur Pollgny and Monsieur Debienne hear about the death
of Jo=eph Buguat.
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What is the reacton of Monsieur Richard and Monsieur
Monchanmmin to:

a the passage written In red itk in the mamgrandum book?

b the letter from 0467

¢ the latter kom Monsieur Debienne and Monsieur Polgny?

d Madame Giry's expianation for the strange events |n Box Five?
Discuss with other students the importance to the story of

a Scandinavia

b Paros-Guine

¢ the Angel of Music

d the churchyard

Chaptar 4—-6
Before you read

a

What do you think wil happen when Monsigur Richard and
WMaonsieur Mongharmin watch the pedurmance from Box Five?
Whizh of these words are often faund In barrar ataries? Discuss
wiy.

carrfage  changslier mask foad  fodure  Irap door

Affer ypou read

10

1

12

13

Dizgcuss these guestions with other students.

a When the new maragers ignore 0.G.'s wamings, how does he
get his revenga? Why does he choose these ways?

b Is there a connection between the Cpera ghost, Red Death, the
Angel of Music, and Erik, do you think? Explain why.

c In what ways ara Madame Giry and Madame Valérus similar?

What happens in Christing's dressing room that night after the

chandsliar comes down? Whers i she taken?

Explain Christne's feclings for

a Raoul

b Red Death

¢ Erk

What do you know about Erlics

a feelinge for Christing?



h feellngs for Raoul?
¢ Don Juan Triumphant?

Chaptera 7-9

Before you road

14 What do you think Etik will do next? Why?

13 Anszwer the questions. Find the words in falics in your dichipnary.,
a Ganyou nama a famous monster fram a book or movie?
b What is a safety pin used for?

After v road
16 Are thesa staberments true or false?

a Racul thinks he has shot two stars that keep him awake.

b Count Philippe intends to prevent hils brother from running away

with Christine.

¢ Monsleur Réamy, the secretary, thinks that Gabriel and Meroiar

are partly responsible for the strange events of the svening.

d Madame Giry is locked in the celiars.

€ The managers put false money in the envelope for 0.G,

17 Work with twa ether students.

Students Aand B: You are Morsleur Richard and Maonsiour
Monchammin.  Accose Madarne  Giry  of
staaling your money,

Shndant C: You are Madame Giry. Defend yourself.

18 What was the reason for

a Mensisur Moncharmmin and Monsleur Richard walking backward?

b locking Madame Giry in the scenary managesr's office?

£ Mensieur Moncharmin's nesd for a safety pin?

19 FPut these svents from the slary in the corract arder.

3 Raoul azes threa bodies on the floar and thinks the men ars dead,

b Darius gives his inaster a box with two guns in it.

¢ Tha Persian sess the Punjab rope, and tells Facul they arz in

the tasture room,

d Tha Parsian stops Aaoul from going to look far his brother,

g The glass tums. takéng the Parsian and Ragul inte a woodan

passane.

1)

f The Persian moves a stone in the wall near where Buguet's
hody was found.
g Mifmid rotices that the man ara drugged, not dead.

Lhapters 16—12

Befarg you raad

20 Why does the Persian think that e and Bacul have dropped into
the torture room? What do you think will happen to tham?

21 Look up the words In fafics and use them to complete the
santences.
grasshoppeyr  coarpion  venirmioguist
a a ... can speak without moving his lips so that his voice

seems to come from another place,

b A ... is & small creature that can Kill people.
c A..... is a creature that can jumg, bul it Ganmat hurt people.

After your read

22 ‘We are told that Erlk was a geniug with many talents. What are
these talants and whare was he living when be leamed these skills?

23 Discuss what effect Christing's love for her father and for Racul has
on Erik's actions. How does her kiss on Erik's forehead change
hirm?

24 Why does the author not tell the events of the stary in the order
that they happen? Y¥hy doss be use letters, parts of Moncharmin's
book, and the resuits of his own findings to lell the story? Do you
think it is & good way to tall the story?

Writing

25 The author has seen Christine’s papers, where she wrote down
gverything that happened to her. Choosa one event and wiite har
description of it

26 Write about the mysterous death of Count Philippe for the
nawspaper Epogue. Where was his bedy found, and what do the
police suspect happenad?

27 Imagine you are Raoul, Write a description of the tortura room,
how wous falt in thers, and what yau thought would happen.
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28 If you could interview one character from the gtory, who would your
lke o questlon? YWrite the quasgtions you would ssk.

20 Atthe end of the story, the author asks the reader, “Should we pity
him? Should we curse him?" What do you think? Why?

30 Wiite abolt this beok. What did you like about it and what didn't
vou like? Do you recomemend it?

Angwers for the potivities i this book are wvailable rom vour lngal
Peamon Edueation office or cudtact. Penguin Readets Macketing Deparment,
Pearson Edueation, BEdinkurgh (3ate, Iaclow, Essen ChA20 2TE.




